DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, MAY 3, 2021@ 7PM

Council meetings will be held electronically using the Zoom platform. Members of the public can join the electronic
meeting using this link:

https://zoom.us/j/93091103549?pwd=ejZFQjdhRG5GaEdMaDdvM3p3aUY3UT09

Meeting ID: 930 9110 3549 Passcode: 922208
Although it is possible for members of the public to ‘ attend ’ a Council meeting electronically, we would encourage you to
communicate with Council by forwarding any comments regarding an agenda item in writing via email
to: info@highlands.ca or via Canada Post – District of Highlands, 1980 Millstream Road, Victoria, BC V9B 6H1 or by
dropping your comments in the mail slot available at the District Office.

AGENDA
We acknowledge that we are gathered in the traditional territories of the Lkwungen, Sencoten and Hul ’ q ’ umi ’ num
speaking First Nations with whom we are committed to building stronger working relationships.

1. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA
2. PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS
2.1. Presentation From Auditors
RE: DRAFT 2020 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT
Recommendation: That Council Approve The Draft 2020 Financial Statements
And Receive The Audit Findings Report.
Documents:
2.1a_Draft_2020_Consolidated_Financial_Statements.pdf
2.1b_2020_Highlands_Audit_Findings_Report.pdf

3. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES
3.1. Council - April 19, 2021
Recommendation: Adopt
Documents:
3.1_Council_Minutes_April_19.Pdf

4. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS
4.1. Councillor Leslie Anderson
Heritage Select Committee, Western Communities Policing Advisory
Committee And West Shore Parks & Recreation Society
4.2. Councillor Ann Baird
CRD Climate Action Committee And CRD Housing Trust Fund Commission
4.3. Councillor Gord Baird
CRD Regional Water Supply Commission And CRD JDF Water Distribution
Commission
4.4. Councillor Marcie McLean
Coexisting With Carnivores Alliance, Greater Victoria Family Court And Youth
Justice Committee, Inter-Municipal Advisory Committee On Disability Issues
And Sustainable Land Use Select Committee
4.5. Councillor Karel Roessingh
Capital Region Emergency Services Telecommunications, CRD Arts And
Greater Victoria Public Library

Coexisting With Carnivores Alliance, Greater Victoria Family Court And Youth
Justice Committee, Inter-Municipal Advisory Committee On Disability Issues
And Sustainable Land Use Select Committee
4.5. Councillor Karel Roessingh
Capital Region Emergency Services Telecommunications, CRD Arts And
Greater Victoria Public Library
4.6. Councillor Rose Stanton
Emergency Planning Committee And Social Sustainability Select Committee
4.7. Mayor's Report
Documents:
4.7_Report_Mayor.pdf

5. RATIFICATION OF COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS
6. INTRODUCTION OF LATE ITEMS
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
7.1. Report, Corporate Officer, April 16, 2021
RE: FIREARMS AND BOW HUNTING BYLAW – SPECIES RESTRICTIONS
UPDATE
Recommendation: That Council Receive The Report Of The Corporate Officer
Dated April 16, 2021 And Titled “Firearms
And Bow Hunting Bylaw – Species Restrictions Update” For Information.
Documents:
7.1_Firearms_And_Bow_Hunting_Bylaw_Species_Restrictions_Update.pdf

8. CORRESPONDENCE
8.1. Letter - Capital Regional District, April 16, 2021
RE: CRD ADOPTION OF REGIONAL GROWTH STRATEGY AMENDMENT –
POPULATION PROJECTIONS
Documents:
8.1_Letter_CRD_Adoption_Of_RGS_Amendment.pdf

8.2. Correspondence - J. Kyle, April 19, 2021
RESIDENT PROPOSED BURNING RESTRICTIONS
Documents:
8.2_Corresp_J_Kyle_Resident_Proposed_Burning_Restrictions.pdf

8.3. Letter - Peace River Regional District, April 23, 2021
RE: LACK OF FUNDING – INVASIVE PLANT MANAGEMENT
Documents:
8.3_Letter_PPRD_Lack_Of_Funding _Invasive_Plant Mgmt.pdf

9. BYLAWS
9.1. Report, Corporate Officer, April 23, 2021
RE: AMENDMENT TO COUNCIL REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES BYLAW
NO. 400, 2018
Recommendation: That “Council Remuneration And Expenses Bylaw No. 400,
2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 1, Bylaw No. 429, 2021” Be Adopted.
Documents:

9.1. Report, Corporate Officer, April 23, 2021
RE: AMENDMENT TO COUNCIL REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES BYLAW
NO. 400, 2018
Recommendation: That “Council Remuneration And Expenses Bylaw No. 400,
2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 1, Bylaw No. 429, 2021” Be Adopted.
Documents:
9.1_Bylaw_429_Adoption.pdf

9.2. Report, Chief Administrative Officer, April 14, 2021
RE: FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN BYLAW NO. 430, 2021; TAX RATES BYLAW NO.
431, 2021
Recommendation: That:
1. “Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw No. 430, 2021” Be Read A First, Second And Third
Time.
2. “Tax Rates Bylaw No. 431, 2021” Be Read A First, Second, And Third Time.
Documents:
9.2_2021_Financial_Plan_And_Tax_Rates_Bylaws.pdf

10. NEW BUSINESS
10.1. Report, Planner, April 27, 2021 (DVP-01-21)
RE: DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT DVP-01-21 – 668 SOUTHWOOD
DRIVE
Recommendation: That Council Issue DVP-01-21.
Documents:
10.1_DVP-01-21_668_Southwood_Dr.pdf

10.2. Report, Planner, April 28, 2021 (DVP-03-20)
RE: DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT DVP-03-20 – 747 FINLAYSON ARM
ROAD
Recommendation: That Council Issue DVP-03-20.
Documents:
10.2_DVP-03-20_747_Finlayson_Arm_Rd.pdf

11. IN CAMERA
12. RELEASE OF IN CAMERA RESOLUTIONS
13. ADJOURNMENT
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the District of Highlands (the "District") are the
responsibility of management and have been prepared in compliance with applicable legislation, and
in accordance with public sector accounting standards for local governments established by the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. A summary of the significant accounting policies are
described in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The preparation of financial statements
necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management’s judgment, particularly when
transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future
periods.
The District’s management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in
compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available
on a timely basis for preparation of the consolidated financial statements. These systems are
monitored and evaluated by management.
Mayor and Council meet with management and the external auditors to review the consolidated
financial statements and discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to
their approval of the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent external
auditors appointed by the District. The accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report outlines their
responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the District’s consolidated financial
statements.

Chief Administrative Officer - Treasurer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Mayor and Councillors of The District of Highlands

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the District of Highlands (the “District”),
which comprise:






the consolidated statement of financial position as at end of December 31, 2020
the consolidated statement of operations for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of changes in net financial assets for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies

(hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the District as at December 31, 2020 and its consolidated
results of operations, its consolidated changes in net financial assets and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our auditors’ report.
We are independent of the District in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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District of Highlands

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the District’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the District or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the District’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:


Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control.



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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The District of Highlands



Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the District's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the District to cease to continue as a going concern.



Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.



Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the group Entity to express an opinion on the financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Chartered Professional Accountants
Victoria, Canada
DATE
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

DRAFT
December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable (note 2)
Taxes receivable
Restricted cash

$

Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Security deposits
Accrued payroll expenses
Deferred revenue (note 3)
Long-term debt (note 4)

Net financial assets
Non-financial assets:
Tangible capital assets (note 5)
Prepaid expenses

7,246,016
107,765
51,884
30,288
7,435,953

2019

$

5,471,955
183,836
71,806
26,973
5,754,570

1,175,121
47,162
11,571
184,209
464,542
1,882,605

486,336
53,933
14,138
109,022
549,726
1,213,155

5,553,348

4,541,415

37,492,818
8,900
37,501,718

37,662,466
9,719
37,672,185

Commitments and contingencies (note 10)
COVID-19 (note 14)
Accumulated surplus (note 6)

$

43,055,066

$

42,213,600

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
On behalf of the District:

Chief Administrative Officer - Treasurer
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Consolidated Statement of Operations

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
Financial plan
(note 11)
Revenue:
Taxation, net (note 7)
Government transfers (note 8)
Sale of services
Other
Licenses, permits and other
Investment income
Donations and amenities
Actuarial adjustment on debt

$

Expenses:
Transportation services
General government services
Recreation and cultural services
Protective services
Environmental development services

$

1,012,800
834,200
639,481
573,100
307,500
3,367,081

Annual surplus (deficit)

(189,602)

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year
Accumulated surplus, end of year

2,166,785
586,000
223,127
74,577
66,290
38,200
22,500
3,177,479

2020

42,213,600
$

42,023,998

$

2,151,153
1,516,302
124,937
55,057
105,915
44,429
22,421
24,299
4,044,513

2019

$

2,119,139
808,246
229,778
101,686
76,863
94,033
22,425
21,057
3,473,227

973,410
829,238
599,270
528,073
273,056
3,203,047

962,190
835,594
679,763
482,344
247,513
3,207,404

841,466

265,823

42,213,600

41,947,777

43,055,066

$

42,213,600

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
Financial plan
(note 11)
Annual surplus (deficit)

$

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets
Change in West Shore tangible capital assets

$

(1,248,300)
875,800
(372,500)

Change in prepaid expenses

(562,102)

Net financial assets, beginning of year

4,541,415
$

3,979,313

841,466

2019

$

(836,144)
913,437
18,987
17,500
55,868
169,648

-

Change in net financial assets

Net financial assets, end of year

(189,602)

2020

$

265,823
(393,283)
931,515
13,063
7,400
(28,966)
529,729

819

1,354

1,011,933

796,906

4,541,415

3,744,509

5,553,348

$

4,541,415

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020

2019

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Annual surplus
Items not involving cash:
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets
Change in West Shore
Actuarial adjustment on debt
Changes in non-cash operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Restricted cash
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll expenses
Security deposits
Deferred revenue
Prepaid expenses

$

Capital activities:
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets
Financing activities:
Debt repaid

841,466

$

265,823

913,437
18,987
55,868
(24,299)

931,515
13,063
(28,966)
(21,057)

76,071
19,922
(3,315)
688,785
(2,567)
(6,771)
75,187
819
2,653,590

(52,764)
284
(77)
(115,326)
(37)
(12,028)
15,642
1,354
997,426

(836,144)
17,500
(818,644)

(393,283)
7,400
(385,883)

(60,885)
(60,885)

(60,884)
(60,884)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

1,774,061

550,659

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

5,471,955

4,921,296

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

7,246,016

$

5,471,955

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest
Cash received from interest

$

29,655
44,429

$

25,489
94,033

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

District of Highlands (the "District") is a municipality in the Province of British Columbia and operates
under the provisions of the Local Government Act and the Community Charter of British Columbia.
The District provides municipal services such as police, fire, public works, engineering, planning,
parks, recreation, community development, and other general government operations.

1.

Significant accounting policies:
The consolidated financial statements of the District are prepared by management in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards for governments as recommended by the
Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.
Significant accounting policies adopted by the District are as follows:
(a) Reporting entity:
The consolidated financial statements reflect the combination of all the assets, liabilities,
revenues, expenses, and changes in fund balances and in financial position of the District.
The consolidated financial statements of the District also include the District’s proportionate
interest in West Shore Parks and Recreation Society (“West Shore”), a government
partnership jointly controlled by the District.
(b) Basis of accounting:
The District follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses.
Revenues are normally recognized in the year in which they are earned and measurable.
Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of
goods or services and/or the creation of a legal obligation to pay.
(c) Government transfers:
Government transfers without stipulations restricting their use are recognized in the financial
statements as revenue in the period in which the transfers are authorized, any eligibility
criteria are met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made. Government
transfers with stipulations restricting their use are recognized in the financial statements as
revenues in the period in which the eligible expenditures are incurred, providing they are
authorized and eligibility criteria are met.
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):
(d) Deferred revenue:
Deferred revenue includes grants, contributions and other amounts received from third
parties pursuant to legislation, regulation and agreement which may only be used in certain
programs, in the completion of specific work, or for the purchase of tangible capital assets.
In addition, certain user charges and fees are collected for which the related services have
yet to be performed. Revenue is recognized in the period when the related expenses are
incurred, services performed, or the tangible capital assets are acquired, thereby
extinguishing the related liability.
Development cost charges are amounts which are restricted by government legislation or
agreement with external parties. When qualifying expenditures are incurred, development
cost charges are recognized as revenue in amounts which equal the associated expenses.
(e) Property tax revenue:
Property tax revenue is recognized on the accrual basis using the approved mill rates and
the anticipated assessment related to the current year.
(f)

Investment income:
Investment income is reported as revenue in the period earned. When required by the
funding government or related Act, investment income earned on deferred revenue is added
to the investment and forms part of the deferred revenue balance.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents include investments in the Municipal Finance Authority of British
Columbia (“MFA”) Money Market Fund which is recorded at cost plus earnings reinvested in
the funds.
(h) Long-term debt:
Long-term debt is recorded net of related payments and actuarial earnings.
(i)

Employee future benefits:
The District and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan. These
contributions are expensed as incurred.
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):
(i)

Employee future benefits (continued):
Sick leave and other retirement benefits are also available to the District’s employees. The
costs of these benefits are actuarially determined based on service and best estimates of
retirement ages and expected future salary and wage increases. The obligations under
these benefit plans are accrued based on projected benefits as the employees render
services necessary to earn the future benefits.

(j)

Non-financial assets:
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are
not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.
(i)

Tangible capital assets:
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The
costs, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, are amortized
on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Asset
Park improvements
Buildings
Vehicles
Engineering structures

Useful life - years
15 - 40
25 - 40
5 - 25
20 - 60

Amortization is charged annually, including in the year of acquisition and disposal.
Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive
use.
Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer
contribute to the District's ability to provide goods and services, or when the value of
future economic benefits associated with the asset are less than the book value of the
asset.
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):
(j)

Non-financial assets (continued):
(i)

Tangible capital assets (continued):
The District is fortunate to have many natural assets that reduce the need for built
infrastructure that would otherwise be required. This includes the Wark-Colquitz aquifer
(water storage and filtration), creeks, ditches and forestlands (rain water management)
and the foreshore area (natural seawall). Canadian public-sector accounting standards
do not allow for the valuation and recording of such assets into the financial statements
of the District. As such, these natural assets are not reported in these financial
statements. Nevertheless, the District acknowledges the importance of these assets
and the need to manage them in conjunction with built infrastructure.

(ii)

Contributions of tangible capital assets:
Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the
date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue.

(iii) Natural resources:
Natural resources that have not been purchased are not recognized as assets in the
financial statements.
(iv) Works of art and cultural and historic assets:
Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these
financial statements.
(v) Interest capitalization:
The District does not capitalize interest costs associated with the acquisition or
construction of a tangible capital asset.
(vi) Leased tangible capital assets:
Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership
of property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are
accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses
as incurred.
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):
(k) Contaminated sites:
The District records a liability in its financial statements when contamination on non-active
property exceeds an accepted environmental standard and the District is directly
responsible, or accepts responsibility for, the damage. The liability is measured at the
District’s best estimate of the costs directly attributable to remediation of the contamination.
No contaminated sites liabilities have been recorded in these financial statements.
(l)

Use of estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period. Significant estimates include assumptions used in estimating historical
cost and useful lives of tangible capital assets and estimating provisions for accrued
liabilities including employee future benefits, contaminated sites and contingent liabilities.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

2.

Accounts receivable:
2020
Amenities receivable
Grants receivable
GST receivable
Trade receivables
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3,042
11,375
46,106
47,242

$

11,250
60,240
37,221
75,125

$

107,765

$

183,836
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

3.

Deferred revenue:
Deferred revenue, reported on the statement of financial position, is comprised of the following:
2020

4.

2019

Prepaid taxes and other
West Shore

$

69,219
114,990

$

59,086
49,936

Total deferred revenue

$

184,209

$

109,022

Long-term debt:
(a) The District issues debt instruments through the MFA, pursuant to security issuing bylaws
under authority of the Community Charter, to finance certain capital expenditures. The debt
is issued on a sinking fund basis, whereby MFA invests the District’s principal payments so
that the payments, plus investment income, will equal the original outstanding debt amount
at the end of the repayment period. Actuarial earnings on debt represent forgiveness of debt
by the MFA using surplus investment income generated by the principal payments. Gross
amount of debt and the amount of the principal payments and actuarial earnings are as
follows:

MFA
issue #

Bylaw #

81

186

Purpose

Maturity
date

Original
issued
amount

Principal
payments and
actuarial Interest
earnings
rate

Balance
2020

Balance
2019

West Shore
139

arena

382 Fire hall bay

2024 $ 571,021
2026

$

500,000

422,704

2.9% $

148,317

$ 185,498

183,775

2.1%

316,225

364,228

464,542

$ 549,726

and tender
$1,071,021
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

4.

Long-term debt (continued):
(b) Principal payments and estimated actuarial earnings on long-term debt for the next five
years are as follows:
Total
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

$

86,786
90,143
93,639
97,280
55,250
41,444

(c) Interest expense:
Total interest expense on long-term debt during the year was $29,774 (2019 - $25,489).
West Shore arena interest on debt is reduced by a subsidy from West Shore Parks and
Recreation Society.
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2020

5.

Tangible capital assets:
Park
Land improvements

Buildings

Vehicles and
equipment

Engineering
structures

Assets under
construction

Total
2020

Total
2019

Cost:
Balance, beginning of year
Additions
Disposals, transfers and change in cost share

$

9,685,876
-

461,143
9,702
-

5,484,526
53,521
(76,307)

2,400,102
122,868
(83,193)

36,860,860
374,269
-

275,784
-

54,892,507
836,144
(159,500)

54,626,606
393,283
(127,382)

9,685,876

470,845

5,461,740

2,439,777

37,235,129

275,784

55,569,151

54,892,507

Balance, beginning of year
Disposals and change in cost share
Amortization

-

103,259
7,575

1,074,274
(21,771)
102,225

1,319,433
(45,374)
102,103

14,733,075
701,534

-

17,230,041
(67,145)
913,437

16,434,411
(135,885)
931,515

Balance, end of year

-

110,834

1,154,728

1,376,162

15,434,609

-

18,076,333

17,230,041

9,685,876

360,011

4,307,012

1,063,615

21,800,520

275,784

Balance, end of year

Accumulated amortization:

Net book value, end of year

$

37,492,818

37,662,466
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

5.

Tangible capital assets (continued):
(a) Assets under construction:
As at December 31, 2020 there was $275,784 of assets under construction yet to be
amortized (2019 - $nil). Amortization of assets commences when the assets are available
for service.
(b) Contributed tangible capital assets:
There were no contributed assets recognized during the year (2019 - $nil).
(c) Tangible capital assets disclosed at nominal values:
Where an estimate of fair value could not be made, the tangible capital asset has been
recognized at a nominal value.
(d) Works of art and historical treasures:
The District manages and controls various works of art and non-operational historical
cultural assets including buildings, artifacts, paintings and sculptures located at District sites
and public display areas. These assets are not recorded as tangible capital assets and are
not amortized.
(e) Write-down of tangible capital assets:
No write-down of tangible capital assets occurred during the year.
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

6.

Accumulated surplus:
Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves and reserve funds as
follows:
2020
Surplus:
Equity in tangible capital assets
Operating

Reserve funds set aside for specific purposes by Council:
Fire capital works and equipment
Park acquisition/development
Roads reserve
General reserve for future expenditures
Land sales
Capital works
West Shore reserves
Library major asset maintenance
Gas Tax Agreement funds
Community hall
Snow reserve
Financial stability reserve
Bridge replacement reserve
Groundwater and drainage reserve
Heritage structure reserve
West Shore Recreation
Park facilities replacement
COVID-19 Restart Grant

DRAFT - April 28, 2021, 9:27 AM

2019

$ 37,028,276
1,466,666
38,494,942

$ 37,112,740
1,440,114
38,552,854

863,057
19,284
1,140,502
296,188
110
185,083
48,970
15,118
322,339
146,089
122,850
383,118
39,243
85,272
25,331
16,135
72,541
778,894
4,560,124

912,636
17,140
1,023,314
275,857
109
181,211
48,970
12,109
540,275
137,925
61,626
331,053
11,149
10,186
17,186
16,000
64,000
3,660,746

$ 43,055,066

$ 42,213,600
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

7.

Taxation:
Taxation revenue, reported on the consolidated statement of operations, is comprised of the
following:
2020
General tax levy
1% utility taxes

$

Less taxes levied for other authorities:
School authorities
Police tax
Capital Regional District
Capital Regional Hospital District
BC Assessment Authority
BC Transit
Municipal Finance Authority

$

1,207,114
176,399
232,607
163,696
35,737
170,852
168
1,986,573
$

8.

4,101,011
36,715
4,137,726

2019

2,151,153

4,068,357
36,379
4,104,736
1,239,331
165,665
214,576
174,380
32,609
158,870
166
1,985,597

$

2,119,139

Government transfers:
The District recognizes the transfer of government funding as expenses or revenues in the period
that the events giving rise to the transfer occurred. The government transfers reported on the
consolidated statement of operations are:
2020
Small communities and equalization payments
Federal Gas Tax Agreement
COVID-19 Restart Grant
Other

DRAFT - April 28, 2021, 9:27 AM

2019

$

397,528
148,824
897,000
72,950

$

395,284
297,581
115,381

$

1,516,302

$

808,246
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

9.

Pension plan:
The District and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the "Plan"), a jointly
trusteed pension plan. The Board of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is
responsible for administering the plan, including investment of assets and administration of
benefits. The plan is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits are
based on a formula. As at December 31, 2019, the plan has about 213,000 active members and
approximately 106,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 41,000
contributors from local governments.
Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan
and adequacy of plan funding. The most recent valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at
December 31, 2018, indicated a $2,866 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits.
The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2021, with results available later in 2022.
Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is
because the plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the plan in aggregate,
resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to
individual employers participating in the plan.
The District paid $52,114 (2019 - $51,901) for employer contributions while employees
contributed $45,844 (2019 - $46,104) to the plan in fiscal 2020.

DRAFT - April 28, 2021, 9:27 AM
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

10. Commitments and contingencies:
(a) The Capital Regional District ("CRD") debt, under provisions of the Local Government Act, is
a direct, joint and several liability of the CRD and each member municipality within the CRD,
including the District.
(b) The District is a shareholder and member of the Capital Region Emergency Service
Telecommunications (CREST) Incorporated which provides centralized emergency
communications, and related public safety information services to municipalities, regional
districts, the provincial and federal governments and their agencies, and emergency service
organizations throughout the Greater Victoria region and the Gulf Islands. Members’
obligations to share in funding ongoing operations and any additional costs relating to capital
assets are to be contributed pursuant to a Members’ Agreement.
(c) Under borrowing arrangements with the MFA, the District is required to lodge security by
means of demand notes and interest-bearing cash deposits based on the amount of the
borrowing. As a condition of these borrowings, a portion of the debenture proceeds is
withheld by the MFA as a debt reserve fund. These deposits are included in the District's
financial assets as other assets and are held by the MFA as security against the possibility
of debt repayment default. If the debt is repaid without default, the deposits are refunded to
the District. At December 31, 2020 there were contingent demand notes of $38,858 (2019 $38,858) which are not included in the financial statements of the District.
(d) The District is self-insured through membership in the Municipal Insurance Association of
British Columbia. Under this program, member municipalities are to share jointly for general
liability claims against any member in excess of $5,000. Should the Association pay out
claims in excess of premiums received, it is possible that the District, along with the other
participants, would be required to contribute towards the deficit.
(e) The District entered into a contract with Victoria Contracting and Municipal Maintenance
Corporation in relation to the Highway Maintenance contract. The agreement is from
October 1, 2019 to March 31, 2024 for a total commitment of $157,000 per annum.
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

11. Financial plan data:
The financial plan data presented in these consolidated financial statements is based upon the
2020 operating and capital budgets approved by Council on April 28, 2020, adjusted to reflect the
West Shore proportionately consolidated budgeted revenues and expenses. The chart below
reconciles the approved financial plan to the financial plan figures reported in these consolidated
financial statements.
Financial plan amount
Revenues:
Financial plan, as approved by Council
West Shore

$

Expenses:
Financial plan, as approved by Council
West Shore

Annual deficit

2,953,875
223,604
3,177,479
3,155,705
211,376
3,367,081

$

(189,602)

12. West Shore Parks and Recreation Society:
(a) Capital asset transfer:
The CRD transferred the lands and facilities comprising the Juan de Fuca Recreation Centre
to the following municipal partners (the “Municipalities”) in 2002: City of Langford, City of
Colwood, District of Highlands, District of Metchosin, Town of View Royal and the CRD (on
behalf of a portion of the Juan de Fuca Electoral Area). Effective January 1, 2018, the Juan
de Fuca Electoral Area withdrew as a member of the Society.
The lands and facilities were transferred to the Municipalities in their proportionate share, as
specified in the Co-Owners’ Agreement. Future improvements are allocated among the
partners as per the cost sharing formula in effect each year for each service or facility, as
outlined in a Members’ Agreement. For 2020, the District’s share of improvements
purchased by West Shore on its behalf are $53,521 (2019 - $24,676).
Because the cost sharing formula in the Members’ Agreement produces different cost
shares for the members from year-to-year, there is a gain or loss on the opening fund
balances. In 2020, there was a decrease to the District's cost share of $54,536 (2019 increase of $28,316).
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

12. West Shore Parks and Recreation Society (continued):
(a) Capital asset transfer (continued):
The participating Municipalities have each become members in West Shore, which was
incorporated to provide parks, recreation and community services to the Municipalities under
contract. Under terms of an Operating, Maintenance and Management Agreement, West
Shore is responsible to equip, maintain, manage and operate the facilities located at the
recreation centre.
Financial results and financial plan for West Shore are consolidated into the District’s
financial statements proportionately, based on the cost sharing formula outlined in the
Members’ Agreement. In 2020, the District’s proportion for consolidation purposes was
3.52% (2019 - 3.65%).
(b) Condensed financial information for West Shore:
2020
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

$

Net financial assets
Non-financial assets

4,767,787
4,211,496

2019
$

556,291
1,042,698

3,480,294
2,362,813
1,117,481
1,308,209

Accumulated surplus

$

1,598,989

$

2,425,690

Revenues
Requisition for members

$

4,439,706
5,071,039
9,510,745

$

7,330,284
4,947,539
12,277,823

Expenses
Requisition for members

Annual deficit

DRAFT - April 28, 2021, 9:27 AM

5,266,407
5,071,039
10,337,446
$

(826,701) $

7,337,752
4,947,539
12,285,291
(7,468)
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

13. Segmented information:
The District is a diversified municipal organization that provides a wide range of services to its
citizens. District services are provided by departments and their activities reported separately.
Certain functions that have been separately disclosed in the segmented information, along with
the services they provide, are as follows:
(a) General government:
The General Government function is comprised of Legislative Services (Council and
Committees) and General Administration, which includes Financial Management, Common
Services and other administrative activities related to the management of the District. This
segment also includes any other functions categorized as non-departmental.
(b) Protective services:
The Protective Services are comprised of three core services: Emergency Program, Fire
Protection, Building and Bylaw Enforcement.
Emergency Program captures the District’s emergency preparedness programs that ensure
the District is prepared and capable to respond to the devastating effects of a disaster or
major catastrophic event.
Fire Protection Services are carried out by the District’s Fire Department, whose mandate is
to provide critical lifesaving services in preventing or minimizing the loss of life and property
from fire and natural and man-made emergencies.
Building and Bylaw Enforcement promotes, facilitates and enforces general compliance with
the provisions of bylaws that pertain to the health, safety and welfare of the community.
(c) Transportation services:
Transportation services is responsible for transportation functions including roads and
streets.
As well, services are provided around infrastructure, transportation planning, pedestrian and
cycling issues and on-street parking regulations, including street signs and painting.
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

13. Segmented information (continued):
(d) Environmental and development services:
Environmental development services works to achieve the District's community planning
goals through the official community plan and other policy initiatives. Planning provides a full
range of planning services related to zoning, development permits, variance permits and
current regulatory issues.
(e) Recreation and cultural services:
Recreation and cultural services is responsible for the maintenance and development of all
park facilities. Recreation services facilitate the provision of recreation and wellness
programs and services through West Shore.
The accounting policies used in these segments is consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements as disclosed in note 1. The following
table provides additional financial information for the foregoing segments.
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2020

13. Segmented information (continued):

General
Government
Services

2020
Revenue:
Taxation
Government transfers
Sale of services
Licenses permits and other
Investment income
Donations and amenities
Other

Environmental
and
Protective Transportation Development
Services
Services
services

$

515,831
429,316
5,526
10,799
14,990
14,045

$

595,755
19,125
78,373
10,004
24,299

$

636,670
706,962
3,321
17,937
22,421
-

$

Recreation
and cultural
services

178,476 $
148,542
13,422
111
-

224,421
212,357
119,411
1,387
41,012

Total

$

2,151,153
1,516,302
124,937
105,915
44,429
22,421
79,356

Total revenue

990,507

727,556

1,387,311

340,551

598,588

4,044,513

Expenses:
Contracted and general services
Wages and employee benefits
Materials, supplies and utilities
Council expenses
Grants
Interest
Amortization

198,228
459,761
50,004
91,112
20,480
2,881
6,772

151,436
188,771
68,741
119,125

203,293
4,270
64,313
701,534

128,185
144,688
183

473,762
12,911
26,774
85,823

1,154,904
797,490
195,969
91,112
20,480
29,655
913,437

Total expenses

829,238

528,073

973,410

273,056

599,270

3,203,047

Annual surplus (deficit)

$

161,269

$

199,483

$

413,901

$

67,495 $

(682) $

841,466
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Year ended December 31, 2020

13. Segmented information (continued):

General
Government
Services

2019
Revenue:
Taxation
Government transfers
Sale of services
Licenses, permits and other

Environmental
and
Protective Transportation Development
Services
Services
services

$

Investment income
Donations and amenities

Other

561,830
135,192
3,977
13,292
32,396
18,089

$

588,063
10,000
50,069
20,945
21,057

$

563,791
468,288
854
37,554
22,425
-

$

Recreation
and cultural
services

191,963 $
123,910
12,648
234
-

213,492
70,856
225,801
2,904
83,597

Total

$

2,119,139
808,246
229,778
76,863
94,033
22,425
122,743

Total revenue

764,776

690,134

1,092,912

328,755

596,650

3,473,227

Expenses:
Contracted and general services
Wages and employee benefits
Materials, supplies and utilities
Council expenses
Grants
Interest
Amortization

191,358
465,306
51,309
97,112
20,050
3,662
6,797

76,422
195,152
79,425
131,345

168,706
7,256
76,772
709,456

108,430
138,900
183

559,652
10,888
25,489
83,734

1,104,568
806,614
218,394
97,112
20,050
29,151
931,515

Total expenses

835,594

482,344

962,190

247,513

679,763

3,207,404

Annual surplus (deficit)

$

(70,818)

$

207,790

$

130,722

$

81,242 $

(83,113) $

265,823
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DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020

14. COVID-19:
On March 11, 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health
Organization. This has resulted in governments worldwide, including the Canadian Federal and
Provincial governments, enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. The
current economic climate may have a direct impact on the Districts' operating results and
financial position in the future. The situation is dynamic and the ultimate duration and magnitude
of the impact on the economy and the financial effect on the district is not known at this time.
There have been no significant adverse impacts on the district to date.

DRAFT - April 28, 2021, 9:27 AM
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COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant Schedule

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2020
(Unaudited)

On November 19, 2020, the District received a COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant from the Province
of British Columbia to help address the fiscal impacts of COVID-19. The grant was recognized
as revenue when received and transferred to an operating reserve to fund future eligible
expenditures.

Safe Restart Grant received

$

Use of funds:
Revenue shortfalls
COVID-19 related costs
Balance, December 31, 2020

DRAFT - April 28, 2021, 9:27 AM

897,000
(28,540)
(89,566)

$

778,894
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What’s new in 2020
COVID-19 pandemic
Areas of impact

Key observations

District’s financial
reporting impacts

˗

We considered impacts to financial reporting due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the increased disclosures needed in the
financial statements. Suggestions were provided to management to enhance disclosures which have been reflected in the
financial statements.

District’s internal
control over financial
reporting

˗

There were minimal changes to internal controls over financial reporting due to the COVID-19 pandemic as the District did not
move to a fully remote working environment and was able to maintain its existing internal controls and processes.

Risk assessment

˗

We performed a more thorough risk assessment specifically targeted at the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, including an
assessment of fraud risk factors (i.e., conditions or events that may be indicative of an incentive/pressure to commit fraud,
opportunities to commit fraud, rationalizations of committing fraud).

Working remotely

˗

We performed our interim and year-end audit work remotely. We used virtual work rooms, video conferencing, and internally
shared team sites to collaborate in real-time, both amongst the audit team as well as with management.

˗

We used secure technologies to conduct walkthroughs, perform tests of controls and substantive tests.

˗

We increased our professional skepticism when evaluating electronic evidence received and performed additional procedures
to validate the authenticity and reliability of electronic information used as audit evidence.

˗

The Senior Manager and Engagement Partner were actively involved in determining the impact that the COVID-19 pandemic
had on the audit (as discussed above), including the impact on the District’s financial reporting and the District’s internal
control over financial reporting.

˗

The Senior Manager and Engagement Partner implemented new supervision processes to deal with working in a remote
environment, and our audit approach allowed us to manage the audit using meaningful milestones and frequent touch points.

˗

As there were minimal changes to the District’s business during the year, we did not change our approach for the audit.

Direction and
supervision of the
audit

Substantive testing –
Response

KPMG Audit Findings Report
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What’s new in 2020 continued
New auditing standard
Standard
CAS 540, Auditing
Accounting Estimates
and Related
Disclosures

KPMG Audit Findings Report

Key observations
˗

The new standard applies to all estimates within the financial statements that had a risk of material misstatement due to
estimation uncertainty.

˗

We assessed the risk of material misstatement due to estimation uncertainty for all estimates within the financial statements
and not just “key estimates”, “critical accounting estimates”, or “estimates with significant risk”. In assessing this risk, we
considered the degree of complexity, uncertainty and subjectivity involved in making each accounting estimate to determine
the level of audit response.

˗

We considered the potential for management bias.

˗

We determined that no estimates had a risk of material misstatement due to estimation uncertainty that was greater than
remote.
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Summary of audit findings
Purpose of this report
The purpose of this Audit Findings Report is to assist you, as members of Council, in your review of the results
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the District of Highlands (the “District”) as at and for the
year ended December 31, 2020.

Finalizing the audit
As of the date of this report, we have completed the audit of the consolidated financial statements, with the
exception of certain remaining procedures, which include:
−
−
−
−

Completing our discussions with the Council;
Obtaining the signed management representation letter;
Obtaining evidence of Council’s acceptance of the consolidated financial statements; and,
Completing subsequent event review procedures up to the date of Council’s acceptance of the consolidated
financial statements.

We will update Council on significant matters, if any, arising from the completion of the audit, including the
completion of the above procedures. Our auditors’ report will be dated upon the completion of any remaining
procedures.

Audit Materiality
We determine materiality in order to plan and perform the audit and to evaluate the effects of identified
misstatements on the audit and of any uncorrected misstatements on the consolidated financial statements.
For the current period, we have determined a materiality of $80,000 (2019 - $80,000). We include in this report
any differences arising from our audit greater than $4,000.
See page 6 for further details.

KPMG Audit Findings Report
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Summary of audit findings (continued)
Areas of audit focus
Our audit is risk-focused. We have not identified any significant risks beyond those required by professional
standards. We have identified areas of audit focus.
See pages 7 and 8 for the audit findings related to areas of audit focus and the risks identified by professional
standards.

Adjustments and differences
Adjustments and differences identified during the audit have been categorized as “Corrected adjustments” or
“Uncorrected differences”. These include disclosure adjustments and differences.
We identified adjustments that were communicated to management and subsequently corrected in the
consolidated financial statements.
We did not identify differences that remain uncorrected.
The management representation letter in Appendix 3 includes all adjustments identified as a result of the audit.
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Summary of audit findings (continued)
Significant accounting policies and practices
There have been no initial selections of, or changes to, significant accounting policies and practices to bring
to your attention.
See page 9 for further details.

Control and other observations
We did not identify any control deficiencies that we determined to be significant deficiencies in internal
controls over financial reporting.
See page 10 for further details.

Independence
We confirm that we are independent with respect to the District within the meaning of the relevant rules and
related interpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies in Canada and any applicable legislation
or regulation from January 1, 2020 up to the date of this report

Current developments
Current developments in Public Sector Accounting Standards are included in Appendix 2.
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Materiality
For the current period, the following amounts have been determined:
Materiality determination

KPMG Audit Findings Report

Comments

Benchmark

Based on total expenses for the year. This
benchmark is consistent with the prior year.

Materiality

Determined to plan and perform the audit and to
evaluate the effects of identified misstatements on
the audit and of any uncorrected misstatements on
the financial statements (2019 - $80,000).

% of benchmark

The corresponding percentage for the prior year’s
audit was 2.5%.

Audit Misstatement Posting
Threshold (“AMPT”)

Threshold used to accumulate misstatements
identified during the audit (2019 – $4,000).

Amount
$3,203,047

$ 80,000

2.5%

$ 4,000
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Areas of audit focus and results
We highlight our significant findings in respect of areas of audit focus as follows:

Area of audit focus

−
−
−

Recognition of revenues
Expenses
Tangible capital assets

Why are we focusing here?

We have determined these accounts to be areas of focus
due to a variety of factors including: the current year
balance, the nature of the account and related accounting
standards, any historical accounting issues, and if there
are any related estimates.

Our response and significant findings
Revenues
−

We substantively tested a sample of conditional and unconditional government transfers by agreeing the amount recognized in
revenue to supporting documentation and cash receipt.

−

We substantively tested taxation revenue by creating an expectation based on B.C. Assessment roll totals and published taxation
rates. No issues were noted.

Expenses
−

We performed substantive analytic procedures over expenses, by comparing actual expenses to prior year and budget and
investigation of variances.

−

We performed detailed testing of the cut-off of expenses and accruals at year end to test if expenses were recorded in the
appropriate fiscal year. No issues were noted.

Tangible Capital Assets

KPMG Audit Findings Report

−

We substantively tested a sample of tangible capital asset additions by agreeing a sample of additions to supporting invoices.

−

We performed substantive analytical procedures over the amortization expense. No issues were noted.
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Audit risks
Professional requirements

Why is it significant?

Fraud risk from management override of controls.

This is a presumed fraud risk. We have not identified any
specific additional risks of management override relating
to this audit.

Risk of material misstatement due to fraud resulting from
fraudulent revenue recognition.

This is a presumed risk of material misstatement due to
fraud.
We have not identified any risk of material misstatement
resulting from fraudulent revenue recognition. This risk
has been rebutted.

Our response and significant findings
Our audit methodology incorporates the required procedures in professional standards to address the risk of
management override of controls. These procedures include:
−

Testing of journal entries and other adjustments;

−

Performing a retrospective review of significant estimates; and

−

Evaluating the business rationale of significant unusual transactions.

There were no significant issues noted in our testing.
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Significant accounting policies and practices
The following items relate to the qualitative aspects of accounting practices of the District:

Significant accounting policies
−

There were no changes to the critical accounting policies and practices.

−

There were no changes in significant accounting policies.

−

There were no significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas.

−

There were no issues noted with the timing of the District’s transactions in relation to the period in which they are recorded.

−

There were no issues noted with the extent to which the consolidated financial statements are affected by a significant unusual transaction and
extent of disclosure of such transactions.

−

There were no issues noted with the extent to which the consolidated financial statements are affected by non-recurring amounts recognized
during the period and extent of disclosure of such transactions.

Significant accounting estimates
−

There were no issues noted with management’s identification of accounting estimates.

−

There were no issues noted with management’s process for making accounting estimates.

−

There were no indicators of possible management bias.

−

There were no significant factors affecting the District’s asset and liability carrying values.

Significant disclosures
−

There were no issues noted with the judgments made, in formulating particularly sensitive consolidated financial statement disclosures.

−

There were no issues noted with the overall neutrality, consistency, and clarity of the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

−

There were no significant potential effects on the consolidated financial statements of significant risks, exposures and uncertainties. A note
related to the uncertain impact of COVID-19 on the District’s future operations has been included in the financial statements.
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Control observations
As your auditors, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting (“ICFR”) relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control.
Our understanding of ICFR was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to
identify all control deficiencies that might be significant deficiencies and other control deficiencies have been identified.
Our awareness of control deficiencies varies with each audit and is influenced by the nature, timing and extent of audit
procedures performed, as well as other factors.
In accordance with professional standards, we are required to communicate to Council any control deficiencies that we
identified during the audit and have determined to be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting. No significant deficiencies have been identified.
Other control deficiencies may be identified during the audit that do not rise to the level of material weakness or
significant deficiency. No other control deficiencies have been identified.
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Appendices
Appendix 1: Required communications

Appendix 2: Current developments and audit trends

Appendix 3: Management representation letter
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Appendix 1: Required communications
In accordance with professional standards, there are a number of communications that are required during the course of
and upon completion of our audit.
These include:

Auditors’ Report
The conclusion of our audit is set out in our draft auditors’ report
attached to the draft financial statements.

Management representation letter
In accordance with professional standards, a copy of the management
representation letter is provided to Council in Appendix 3.

Independence
In accordance with professional standards, we have confirmed our
independence.
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Appendix 2: Current developments and audit trends
Current Developments, created by the KPMG Public Sector and Not-for-Profit Practice, summarizes regulatory and governance matters impacting public sector
entities today, or expected to impact them over the next few years. We provide this information to help public sector entities understand upcoming changes and
challenges they may face in their industry. Some of these developments may not impact the District directly, but we believe it is important to understand what is
happening in the sector.

Public Sector Accounting Standards
Standard

Summary and implications

Impact of
COVID-19

−

In response to the impact of COVID-19 on public sector entities, PSAB has approved deferral of all upcoming accounting
standards by one year and will issue non-authoritative guidance on the effects of COVID-19.

Asset
Retirement
Obligations

–

The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The effective date was deferred by one year
due to COVID-19.

–

The new standard addresses the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of legal obligations associated with
retirement of tangible capital assets in productive use. Retirement costs will be recognized as an integral cost of owning and
operating tangible capital assets. PSAB currently contains no specific guidance in this area.

–

The ARO standard will require the public sector entity to record a liability related to future costs of any legal obligations to be
incurred upon retirement of any controlled tangible capital assets (“TCA”). The amount of the initial liability will be added to the
historical cost of the asset and amortized over its useful life.

–

As a result of the new standard, the public sector entity will have to:

•

Consider how the additional liability will impact net debt, as a new liability will be recognized with no corresponding increase
in a financial asset;

•

Carefully review legal agreements, senior government directives and legislation in relation to all controlled TCA to
determine if any legal obligations exist with respect to asset retirements;

•

Begin considering the potential effects on the organization as soon as possible to coordinate with resources outside the
finance department to identify AROs and obtain information to estimate the value of potential AROs to avoid unexpected
issues.
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Standard

Summary and implications

Revenue

–

The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The effective date was deferred by one year
due to COVID-19.

–

The new standard establishes a single framework to categorize revenues to enhance the consistency of revenue recognition
and its measurement.

–

The standard notes that in the case of revenues arising from an exchange transaction, a public sector entity must ensure the
recognition of revenue aligns with the satisfaction of related performance obligations.

–

The standard notes that unilateral revenues arise when no performance obligations are present, and recognition occurs when
there is authority to record the revenue and an event has happened that gives the public sector entity the right to the revenue.

–

The accounting standards, PS3450 Financial Instruments, PS2601 Foreign Currency Translation, PS1201 Financial Statement
Presentation and PS3041 Portfolio Investments are effective for fiscal years commencing on or after April 1, 2022. The effective
date was deferred by one year due to COVID-19.

–

Equity instruments quoted in an active market and free-standing derivatives are to be carried at fair value. All other financial
instruments, including bonds, can be carried at cost or fair value depending on the public sector entity’s choice and this choice
must be made on initial recognition of the financial instrument and is irrevocable.

–
–

Hedge accounting is not permitted.

–

In July 2020, PSAB approved federal government narrow-scope amendments to PS3450 Financial Instruments which will be
included in the Handbook in the fall of 2020. Based on stakeholder feedback, PSAB is considering other narrow-scope
amendments related to the presentation and foreign currency requirements in PS3450 Financial Instruments. The exposure
drafts were released in summer 2020 with a 90-day comment period.

–

PSAB has initiated a review of sections PS3250 Retirement Benefits and PS3255 Post-Employment Benefits, Compensated
Absences and Termination Benefits. In July 2020, PSAB approved a revised project plan.

–

PSAB intends to use principles from International Public Sector Accounting Standard 39 Employee Benefits as a starting point
to develop the Canadian standard.

–

Given the complexity of issues involved and potential implications of any changes that may arise from the review of the existing
guidance, PSAB will implement a multi-release strategy for the new standards. The first standard will provide foundational
guidance. Subsequent standards will provide additional guidance on current and emerging issues.

Financial
Instruments
and Foreign
Currency
Translation

Employee
Future
Benefit
Obligations

A new statement, the Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses, will be included in the financial statements. Unrealized
gains and losses incurred on fair value accounted financial instruments will be presented in this statement. Realized gains and
losses will continue to be presented in the statement of operations.
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Standard

Summary and implications

International
Strategy

–

PSAB has reviewed all proposed options for its international strategy, and in accordance with its due process, approved the
option to adapt International Public Sector Accounting Standards when developing future standards. PSAB noted that the
decision will apply to all projects beginning on or after April 1, 2021.

–

An exposure draft to modify the GAAP hierarchy has been issued with responses due by February 15, 2021.

–

In October 2019, PSAB approved a proposal to allow public sector entities to recognize intangibles purchased through an
exchange transaction. Practitioners are expected to use the definition of an asset, the general recognition criteria and the GAAP
hierarchy to account for purchased intangibles.

–

PSAB has approved Public Sector Guideline 8 which allows recognition of intangibles purchased through an exchange
transaction. Narrow-scope amendments were made to Section PS 1000 Financial statement concepts to remove prohibition on
recognition of intangibles purchased through exchange transactions and PS 1201 Financial statement presentation to remove
the requirement to disclose that purchased intangibles are not recognized.

–

The effective date is April 1, 2023 with early adoption permitted. Application may be retroactive or prospective.

–

PSAB has proposed new requirements for the recognition, measurement and classification of infrastructure procured through a
public private partnership. PSAB in the process of reviewing feedback provided by stakeholders on the exposure draft.

–

The exposure draft proposes that recognition of infrastructure by the public sector entity would occur when it controls the
purpose and use of the infrastructure, when it controls access and the price, if any, charged for use, and it controls any
significant interest accumulated in the infrastructure when the P3 ends.

–

The exposure draft proposes that the public sector entity recognize a liability when it needs to pay cash or non-cash
consideration to the private sector partner for the infrastructure.

–

The infrastructure would be valued at cost, which represents fair value at the date of recognition with a liability of the same
amount if one exists. Cost would be measured in reference to the public private partnership process and agreement, or by
discounting the expected cash flows by a discount rate that reflects the time value of money and risks specific to the project.

–

The final standard was approved in December 2020 with an issuance date of April 1, 2021 and an effective date of April 1,
2023.

Purchased
Intangibles

Public
Private
Partnerships
(“P3”)
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Standard

Concepts
Underlying
Financial
Performance

Summary and implications

–

PSAB is in the process of reviewing the conceptual framework that provides the core concepts and objectives underlying
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

–

PSAB has released four exposure drafts for the proposed conceptual framework and proposed revised reporting model, and
their related consequential amendments. Comments on the exposure drafts are due in May 2021.

–

PSAB is proposing a revised, ten chapter conceptual framework intended to replace PS 1000 Financial Statement Concepts
and PS 1100 Financial Statement Objectives. The revised conceptual framework would be defined and elaborate on the
characteristics of public sector entities and their financial reporting objectives. Additional information would be provided
about financial statement objectives, qualitative characteristics and elements. General recognition and measurement criteria,
and presentation concepts would be introduced.

–

In addition, PSAB is proposing:
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•

Relocation of the net debt indicator to its own statement and the statement of net financial assets/liabilities, with the
calculation of net debt refined to ensure its original meaning is retained.

•
•
•

Separating liabilities into financial liabilities and non-financial liabilities.
Restructuring the statement of financial position to present non-financial assets before liabilities.
Changes to common terminology used in the financial statements, including re-naming accumulated surplus (deficit) to
net assets (liabilities).

•

Removal of the statement of remeasurement gains (losses) with the information instead included on a new statement
called the statement of changes in net assets (liabilities). This new statement would present the changes in each
component of net assets (liabilities), including a new component called “accumulated other”.

•
–

A new provision whereby an entity can use an amended budget in certain circumstances.
Inclusion of disclosures related to risks and uncertainties that could affect the entity’s financial position.
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Appendix 2: Current developments and audit trends (continued)
Our discussions with you, our audit opinion and what KPMG is seeing in the marketplace - both from an audit and industry perspective - indicate the following is
specific information that will be of particular interest to you. We would, of course, be happy to further discuss this information with you at your convenience.

Thought leadership
Thought leadership

Overview

Link

2020 Audit Quality and
Transparency Report

Learn about KPMG's ongoing commitment to continuous audit quality improvement. KPMG maintains a system
of audit quality control that is designed to meet or exceed the requirements of the applicable professional
standards. In fact, we are continuously reviewing our policies and practices to ensure we’re aligned with all
regulatory and professional requirements, which if our firm commitment to each other as well as to our clients
and to the capital markets we serve.

Link to report

Put your data to work to
gain competitive advantage

There is no "digital economy". The economy is digital and "digits" refer to data. Data is the lifeblood of every
organization on this planet and organizations that embrace this notion are well positioned to grow as industries
continue to evolve and disrupt at an ever increasing pace.

Link to report

Predictive analytics, it
works

CEOs recognize the value that predictive analytics delivers to their decision-making process.

Link to report

Creating the workforce of
the future

You can’t transform the organization without also transforming the workforce. It may be time to rethink the
people strategy.

Link to report

Accelerate

Introducing KPMG’s 2021 edition of Accelerate, a series of articles and videos offering insight into the key
issues driving Board agendas, including:

Link to report

Board Leadership Centre
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−

Cyber risk

−

Internal control over financial reporting, disclosures and regulation

−

Digital disruption

−

Enterprise risk management

−

The evolution of environmental, social and governance (ESG) and disclosures

KPMG provides leading insights to help Board members maximize boardroom opportunities.

Link to site
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Appendix 2: Current developments and audit trends (continued)
COVID-19 pandemic resources
Resources

Summary

Resources for management
and the Board of Directors

Please visit our COVID-19 website for resources regarding the topics below. This site is being updated daily
based on information being released by federal, provincial and municipal news releases.
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−

Business continuity guide

−

Immediate actions to take

−

Medium to long-term actions

−

Tax considerations and a summary of federal and provincial programs

−

Legal considerations

−

Financial reporting and audit considerations

−

Global perspectives

Links
COVID-19 Alerts (Live
Link)
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Appendix 3: Management representation letter
KPMG LLP
St. Andrew’s Square II
800-730 View Street
Victoria, BC
V8W 3Y7

May 3, 2021
We are writing at your request to confirm our understanding that your audit was for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
(hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”) of the District of Highlands (“the Entity”) as at and for the period ended December 31, 2020.

GENERAL:
We confirm that the representations we make in this letter are in accordance with the definitions as set out in Attachment I to this letter.
We also confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing
ourselves:

RESPONSIBILITIES:
1)

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the engagement letter dated March 23, 2021, including for:
a) the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and believe that these financial statements have been prepared and present fairly in
accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework.
b) providing you with all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements (“relevant information”), such as
financial records, documentation and other matters, including:

— the names of all related parties and information regarding all relationships and transactions with related parties;
— the complete minutes of meetings, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared, of Council and
Committees that may affect the financial statements. All significant actions are included in such summaries.

c) providing you with unrestricted access to such relevant information.
d) providing you with complete responses to all enquiries made by you during the engagement.
e) providing you with additional information that you may request from us for the purpose of the engagement.
f)

providing you with unrestricted access to persons within the Entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.
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g) such internal control as we determined is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. We also acknowledge and understand that we are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

h) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements.
i)

ensuring that internal auditors providing direct assistance to you, if any, were instructed to follow your instructions and that we, and others within the
entity, did not intervene in the work the internal auditors performed for you.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING:
2)

We have communicated to you all deficiencies in the design and implementation or maintenance of internal control over financial reporting of which we are
aware.

FRAUD & NON-COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS:
3)

We have disclosed to you:
a) the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.
b) all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of that involves:

— management;
— employees who have significant roles in internal control over financial reporting; or
— others
where such fraud or suspected fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
c) all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements, communicated by employees, former
employees, analysts, regulators, or others.
d) all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, including all aspects of contractual agreements,
whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements.
e) all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:
4)

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the relevant financial reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure in
the financial statements have been adjusted or disclosed.

RELATED PARTIES:
5)

We have disclosed to you the identity of the Entity’s related parties.

6)

We have disclosed to you all the related party relationships and transactions/balances of which we are aware.
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7)

All related party relationships and transactions/balances have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the relevant financial
reporting framework.

ESTIMATES:
8)

The methods, the data and the significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve
recognition, measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in the context of the applicable financial reporting framework.

GOING CONCERN:
9)

We have provided you with all information relevant to the use of the going concern assumption in the financial statements.

10)

We confirm that we are not aware of material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

MISSTATEMENTS:
11)

We approve the corrected misstatements identified by you during the audit described in Attachment II..

OTHER INFORMATION:
12)

We confirm that the final version of the Annual Report 2020 will be provided to you when available, and prior to issuance by the Entity, to enable you to
complete your audit procedures in accordance with professional standards.

NON-SEC REGISTRANTS OR NON-REPORTING ISSUERS:
13)

We confirm that the Entity is not a Canadian reporting issuer (as defined under any applicable Canadian securities act) and is not a United States
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Issuer (as defined by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).

14)

We also confirm that the financial statements of the Entity will not be included in the group financial statements of a Canadian reporting issuer audited by
KPMG or an SEC Issuer audited by any member of the KPMG organization.
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Yours very truly,

_______________________________________
Loranne Hilton, Chief Administrative Officer – Treasurer

Attachments
cc: Mayor and Council
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Attachment I – Definitions
Materiality
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements.
Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by perception of the needs of, or the characteristics of, the users of
the financial statements and, the size or nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both while also considering the entity’s own circumstances.
Fraud & error
Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of amounts or disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial
statement users.
Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets. It is often accompanied by false or misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact
that the assets are missing or have been pledged without proper authorization.
An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of an amount or a disclosure.
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Attachment II - Corrected differences
District of Highlands
Year End: December 31, 2020
Adjusting journal entries
Date: 1/1/2020 To 12/31/2020
Number
KPMG1
KPMG1
KPMG1
KPMG1
KPMG1
KPMG1
KPMG1
KPMG1
KPMG1
KPMG1
KPMG1
KPMG1
KPMG1
KPMG1
KPMG1
KPMG1

Date
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020

Name
Government transers
Sales of service
Other income
Other income
Recreational expense
Amortization
W.SHORE CASH
W.SHORE ACCOUNTS RECEIVAB
W.SHORE PREPAIDS
W.SHORE INVENTORY FOR RESA
W.SHORE - MACHINERY/EQUIP
W.SHORE - AMORT MACHINERY/
CHANGE IN W.SHORE SHARE
W.SHORE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WS EMPL'EE FUTURE BENS OBL
W.SHORE DEFERRED REVENUE

Account No
13-1-1000-0000 WS
13-1-1100-0000 WS
13-1-1200-0000 WS
13-1-1200-0000 WS
13-2-2700-0000 WS
13-2-2700-0002 WS
13-3-1001-3030 WS
13-3-2007-3410 WS
13-3-2007-3415 WS
13-3-2007-3416 WS
13-3-5310-3330 WS
13-3-5310-3331 WS
13-3-9000-0000 WS
13-4-2005-4510 WS
13-4-2005-4511 WS
13-4-2007-4612 WS

Debit

Credit
25,575.00
119,411.00
11,380.00

0.94
173,761.00
11,722.17
47,727.00
6,422.00
7,792.00
416.00
2,758.19
5,992.18
3,104.88
401.00
2,567.00
65,054.00

To record West Shore members
transactions.
KPMG2
KPMG2
KPMG2
KPMG2
KPMG2
KPMG2

12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020

Amortization
W.SHORE BUILDINGS
W.SHORE -BUILDING AMORTIZAT
CHANGE IN W.SHORE SHARE
CHANGE IN W.SHORE SHARE
CHANGE IN W.SHORE SHARE

13-2-2700-0002 WS
13-3-5310-3320 WS
13-3-5310-3321 WS
13-3-9000-0000 WS
13-3-9000-0000 WS
13-3-9000-0000 WS

35,437.66

KPMG100 DOH
KPMG101 DOH
KPMG102 DOH
KPMG103 DOH

6,772.00
183.00
31,088.00

22,786.39
13,666.92
53,520.73
76,307.13
21,770.75

To record change in West Shore
owners building cost share for 2020.
KPMG3
KPMG3
KPMG3
KPMG3

12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020

Amort - General government
Amort - enviro
amort - recreational
Amort - protective

38,043.00

To reclassify amortization for FS
presentation purposes
KPMG4
KPMG4

12/31/2020 SURPLUS/DEFICIT YTD
12/31/2020 EQUITY IN FIXED ASSETS

11-4-9000-4925 DOH
12-4-4700-4150 DOH

33,376.00
33,376.00

To balance invested in TCA Equity

KPMG5
KPMG5
KPMG5
KPMG5

12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/2020

LOSS ON DISPOSAL/TCA
SURPLUS/DEFICIT YTD
ACCUM. AMORTIZATION - EQUIPMENT
EQUITY IN FIXED ASSETS

11-2-2811-3000 DOH
11-4-9000-4925 DOH
12-3-5310-3331 DOH
12-4-4700-4150 DOH

33,807.00
33,807.00
1,024.00
1,024.00

To correct opening balances to
agree to PY closing
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kpmg.ca/audit

KPMG LLP, an Audit, Tax and Advisory firm (kpmg.ca) and a Canadian limited liability partnership established under the laws of Ontario, is the Canadian
member firm of KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”).
KPMG member firms around the world have 174,000 professionals, in 155 countries.
The independent member firms of the KPMG network are affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss entity. Each KPMG firm is a legally distinct and separate
entity, and describes itself as such.
© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
MINUTES OF ELECTRONIC COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, APRIL 19, 2021 @ 7:00 PM
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:
Mayor Ken Williams
Councillor Leslie Anderson
Councillor Ann Baird
Councillor Gord Baird
Councillor Marcie McLean
Councillor Karel Roessingh
Councillor Rose Stanton

IN ATTENDANCE:
Chief Administrative Officer Loranne Hilton
Corporate Officer Deb Hopkins
Planner Laura Becket
Public Observation: 2

1. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
MOTION: 73-2021

Moved Councillor McLean, Seconded Councillor Gord Baird
That the agenda be approved as presented.

CARRIED

2. PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES
3.1

Council Minutes – April 6, 2021
MOTION: 74-2021

3.2

Moved Councillor Stanton, Seconded Councillor McLean
That the minutes of the April 6, 2021 Council meeting be adopted.
CARRIED
West Shore Parks and Recreation Society Minutes – March 11, 2021

MOTION: 75-2021

4. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES &
COMMISSIONS

Moved Councillor Anderson, Seconded Councillor Stanton
That the minutes of the March 11, 2021 West Shore Parks and
Recreation Society meeting be received.
CARRIED

Councillor Leslie Anderson
Heritage Select Committee, West Shore Parks and Recreation Society and
Western Communities Policing Advisory Committee
Councillor Ann Baird
CRD Climate Action Committee and CRD Housing Trust Fund Commission
Councillor Gord Baird
CRD Regional Water Supply Commission & CRD JDF Water Distribution
Commission
Councillor Marcie McLean
Coexisting with Carnivores Alliance, Greater Victoria Family Court Youth
Justice Committee, Intermunicipal Advisory Committee on Disability Issues
and Sustainable Land Use Select Committee
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Councillor Karel Roessingh
Capital Region Emergency Services Telecommunications (CREST), CRD
Arts and Greater Victoria Public Library Board
CRD Arts Commission
Project grants were awarded at the meeting held March 24th, 2021. Details
can be found here: https://www.crd.bc.ca/docs/default-source/artspdf/pgeventsjan2021.pdf
The Commission received the result of a follow-up survey done by staff to
determine the effects of COVID-19 on arts organizations. Details will be
released soon, but in general the survey was more positive than last
summer's, and arts organizations are adapting their programming to
provide more online events and services. They have also cut back budgets
to adjust, and have been receiving aid from an increase in provincial
funding.
Arts Administrator, James Lam, will be leaving CRD Arts after nearly 20
years of service. He will be missed!
CREST
The newly updated CREST website is now ready and accessible to the
public, and can be found at www.crest.ca. CREST will soon be making
announcements regarding the website and the new P25 system, which is
now fully operational.
The Board has determined that the most significant risk to CREST is the
absence of a post disaster building and is working to identify options for a
new operating space.
Greater Victoria Public Library Board
The board held a strategic planning session on Saturday, April 10th. The
new plan will last only two years and will be a bridging plan to focus on the
things that the library can do to meet users’ immediate needs, and to create
a diverse, inclusive, accessible, and equitable environment.
Councillor Rose Stanton
Emergency Planning and Social Sustainable Committee
Mayor Ken Williams
Wed. April 7th, 2021 Minister Osborne Teleconference
Minister Osbourne and Dr. Martin Lavoie from the Province Health Office
provided an information session on COVID-19 Vaccines.
 How COVID-19 vaccines are developed
 COVID-19 vaccines approved for use in Canada
 BC’s COVID-19 Immunization Plan
 Expected timelines and estimated doses
Link: https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/covid-19/vaccine/plan
Fri. April 7th, 2021 Island Health Teleconference
Island Health Officer Dr. Richard Stanwick reported on COVID-19.
 10 COVID Cases equals about 25 contacts
 Now all being treated as variants of concern for testing
 Aggressive contact tracing is being done
 Past 20 variant cases as a result of people travelling from Whistler to
Island
 Incidences of side effects in AstraZenica
 Vaccine is approximately 93% effective after first dose
 New regulations that businesses must close for 10 days if 3 or more
employees have tested positive
 Island Health has the highest uptake in the province
 21% of island population is now vaccinated
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 Mental health services being increased
 Long Term Care visitation has been restored

Tues. April 13th, 2021 Mayor’s Roundtable
The mayors heard a presentation from the Greater Victoria Tourism &
Recovery Task Force by Paul Nursey (Destination Greater Victoria) and
Dave Cowan (CEO Butchart Gardens).
The tourism industry lost 1 billion dollars last year due to the COVID-19
lockdown. Attendance at Butchart Gardens was down 90%. These two
gentlemen feared that the lack of a recovery roadmap by senior members
of government, both federal and provincial, will result in similar losses in
2021 and 2022. The impact on small businesses is enormous and they
looked for help and support from local government to get the message
across to our provincial and federal government counterparts that we need
an effort that matches those of other nations who are far ahead of us in
recovery planning.
Wed. April 14th, 2021 CRD Board Meeting
Many delegations supported the Zero Waste British Columbia input on the
Solid Waste Management Plan that seeks to strengthen the emphasis on
the CRD becoming a national leader in zero waste and the circular
economy.
Link:
https://crd.ca.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=21888&GUID=5A4AA
008-A23D-4759-ACEB-BB707FF6E786
Later in the meeting the Board unanimously referred proposed motion 10.2
on Zero Waste to the Environmental Services Committee meeting on Wed.
April 21.
I sponsored, along with other directors, a resolution to protect old -growth
forests which will also appear on the next Environmental Services
Committee agenda.
Resolution: Partnerships to Protect Fairy Creek and Other At-Risk OldGrowth Forests on Vancouver Island
WHEREAS Ancient high productivity old-growth ecosystems are globally
one of the most valuable climate mitigation and resiliency assets in terms of
carbon storage, sequestration, protection against wildfire, storage of water
and preservation of biological diversity;
AND WHEREAS Less than 3% of the original high productivity (big tree)
old-growth forests in British Columbia remain standing, and of this residual
land base, 75% is slated to be eliminated through industrial logging
operations;
AND WHEREAS Alternatives exist to increase protection of biological
diversity and employment, through the immediate and just transition to
sustainable management of second-growth forests with expanded valueadded processing and manufacturing;
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Capital Regional District
expresses its willingness to work with the Pacheedaht First Nation, the
Government of British Columbia and other entities to protect Fairy Creek
and other at-risk old-growth forests on southern Vancouver Island, including
consideration of establishing Indigenous Protected and Conserved Areas;
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Capital Regional District calls
on the Government of British Columbia to allocate funding to enact
deferrals in an economically just manner, in the full spirit of reconciliation
and to support the economic transition of affected First NationsPage
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First Nation workers, communities and companies from unsustainable oldgrowth logging toward the development of long-term sustainable local
economies.
The board meeting also had many house-keeping items and a report from
CAO Bob Lapham on the 1st Quarter Progress of the CRD.
Link:
https://crd.ca.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=21886&GUID=EECEA
B6B-0D6B-4337-A1E9-A496D076326B

5. RATIFICATION OF COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDATIONS
5.1.1

From Committee of the Whole, April 12, 2021
RE: GRANT IN AID FUNDING

MOTION: 76-2021

5.1.2

Moved Councillor Gord Baird, Seconded Councillor Roessingh
That the 2021 Grant in Aid funding be awarded as follows:
Highlands District Community Association
$1,500
Highland Heritage Park Society
$3,000
Highland Park and Recreation Association
$2,000
Highland Stewardship Foundation
$500
West Shore Arts Council
$500
Bike Victoria Society
$500
Capital Region Food and Agriculture Initiatives Round Table
$500
Greater Victoria BMX
$100
Habitat Acquisition Trust
$1,500
Intermunicipal Advisory Committee on Disability Issues
$200
Need2 Suicide Prevention Education and Support
$500
JDF Performing Arts Centre Society
$50
Peninsula Streams Society
$1,000
West Shore RCMP
$2,000
Royal Canadian Legion Prince Edward #91
$500
CARRIED
RE: GRANT IN AID FUNDING

MOTION: 77-2021

5.1.3

Moved Councillor Roessingh, Seconded Councillor Stanton
That the Grant in Aid budget amount for 2021 be increased to $14,350.
CARRIED
RE: HDCA 2021 INVASIVE BROOM REMOVAL PROGRAM

MOTION: 78-2021

5.1.4

Moved Councillor Gord Baird, Seconded Councillor Roessingh
That the Highlands District Community Association’s Invasive Species
Broom Removal Program be funded from the Invasive Species budget
for 2021.
CARRIED
RE: FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN 2021-2025

MOTION: 79-2021

Moved Councillor Stanton, Seconded Councillor Anderson
That staff be directed to bring forward a Financial Plan Bylaw and Tax
Rates Bylaw to the May 3, 2021 Council meeting incorporating an
increase to the Class 5 (Light Industry) multiple of 0.2.
CARRIED
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6. INTRODUCTION OF LATE ITEMS
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
7.1

Report, Chief Administrative Officer, April 15, 2021 (0400.60)
RE: DISTRICT OF SAANICH REQUEST FOR PARTICIPATION IN
MVA PILOT PROJECT FOR 30KM/H SPEED LIMITS
MOTION: 80-2021

Moved Councillor McLean, Seconded Councillor Stanton
That a response be sent to District of Saanich Council in support of
Saanich’s application to the Province for a pilot project pursuant to the
Motor Vehicle Act to explore a regional 30 km/h speed limit on
residential streets without a continuous yellow centre line, as outlined in
the correspondence from the District of Saanich dated March 25, 2021.
CARRIED

8. CORRESPONDENCE
8.1

Correspondence – Co-Existing with Carnivores Alliance, March 29,
2021
RE: MORATORIUM ON RECREATIONAL WOLF HUNTING ON
VANCOUVER ISLAND
MOTION: 81-2021

8.2

Moved Councillor McLean, Seconded Councillor Gord Baird
That Council authorize sending a letter to the Minister of Environment
and Climate Change Strategy and the Minister of Forests, Land, Natural
Resource Operations and Rural Development to implement a
moratorium on recreational wolf hunting on Vancouver Island, pending
the completion of a scientific, data-driven and evidence-based study
that includes consultation with the Island’s Indigenous communities, to
re-examine the efficacy of unrestricted wolf harvesting practices and
their impacts on the Island’s bio-diversity, wildlife ecology and
sustainability of the resident wildlife population.
CARRIED
Letter – City of Victoria, April 7, 2021 (0440.60)
RE: RIGHT FOR LAID OFF WORKERS TO RETURN TO THEIR
JOBS WHEN THE PANDEMIC CEASES

MOTION: 82-2021

8.3

Moved Councillor Gord Baird, Seconded Councillor Roessingh
That the letter from the City of Victoria dated April 7, 2021 be received.
CARRIED

Correspondence – T. Nawrocki, April 12, 2021
RE: NOISE SUPPRESSION BYLAW
MOTION: 83-2021

Moved Councillor Roessingh, Seconded Councillor Gord Baird
That a review of the Noise Suppression Bylaw be referred to the next
annual Strategic Plan review.
CARRIED
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Letter – City of Penticton, April 14, 2021 (0400.65)
RE: B.C. GOVERNMENT’S USE OF PROVINCIAL PARAMOUNTCY
TO UNDERMINE LOCAL GOVERNMENT BYLAWS

MOTION: 84-2021

8.5

Moved Councillor Gord Baird, Seconded Councillor Stanton
That the letter from the City of Penticton dated April 14, 2021 be
received.
CARRIED
Correspondence – M. Rempel, April 14, 2021
RE: REQUEST TO IMPLEMENT OPEN BURNING RESTRICTIONS
In response to questions from Council, staff commented that this item
was removed from the Strategic Plan at the beginning of Council’s term.
Funds from the Safe Restart Grant can be used for increased
enforcement related to COVID, but not for the development of a bylaw.
The Fire Chief has the authority to restrict burning during extreme
weather when a fire hazard exists, but there may be limitations to the
District’s regulatory authority to impose some restrictions.

MOTION: 85-2021

Moved Councillor Ann Baird, Seconded Councillor McLean
That Provincial guidelines for using funds from the Canada-B.C. Safe
Restart Grant for Local Governments be provided to Council on an
upcoming meeting agenda.
CARRIED

MOTION: 86-2021

Moved Councillor Roessingh, Seconded Gord Baird
That the Fire Chief attend an upcoming meeting to discuss outdoor
burning, health concerns, fire hazards, and general burning restrictions
and associated enforcement authority.
CARRIED

9. BYLAWS
9.1

Report, Corporate Officer, April 13, 2021 (0550.01)
RE: AMENDMENT TO COUNCIL REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES
BYLAW NO. 400, 2018
MOTION: 87-2021

Moved Councillor Roessingh, Seconded Councillor Stanton
That “Council Remuneration and Expenses Bylaw No. 400, 2018,
Amendment Bylaw No. 1, Bylaw No. 429, 2021” be introduced and read
a first time.
CARRIED

MOTION: 88-2021

Moved Councillor Roessingh, Seconded Councillor Stanton
That “Council Remuneration and Expenses Bylaw No. 400, 2018,
Amendment Bylaw No. 1, Bylaw No. 429, 2021” be read a second time.
CARRIED

MOTION: 89-2021

Moved Councillor Roessingh, Seconded Councillor Stanton
That “Council Remuneration and Expenses Bylaw No. 400, 2018,
Amendment Bylaw No. 1, Bylaw No. 429, 2021” be read a third time.
CARRIED
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10. NEW BUSINESS
10.1

Report, Planner, April 14, 2021 (DVP-03-20)
RE: DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT DVP-03-20 – 747
FINLAYSON ARM ROAD
MOTION: 90-2021

Moved Councillor Gord Baird, Seconded Councillor Roessingh
That Council direct staff to issue notification for the consideration of
application DVP-03-20 at a future Council meeting.
CARRIED
Councillor Gord Baird left the meeting at 7:45 pm declaring a conflict of
interest as the recipient of the expense claims to be considered in item
10.2.
Councillor Ann Baird left the meeting at 7:45 pm declaring a conflict of
interest due to a personal relationship with the recipient of the expense
claims to be considered in item 10.2.
Councillors Ann and Gord Baird did not return to the meeting.

10.2

Report, Corporate Officer, April 13, 2021 (1700.25)
RE: REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST FOR E-BIKE EXPENSES
MOTION: 91-2021

Moved Councillor Roessingh, Seconded Councillor Stanton
That Council approve the reimbursement claims attached to the report
from the Corporate Officer dated April 13, 2021 for E-bike expenses
based on the established per kilometre vehicle use rate of $0.52.
CARRIED

11. IN CAMERA
12. RELEASE OF IN CAMERA
RESOLUTIONS
13. ADJOURNMENT
MOTION: 92-2021

MAYOR

Moved Councillor Roessingh, Seconded Councillor McLean
That the Council meeting of April 19, 2021 adjourn at 7:47 pm.
CARRIED

CORPORATE OFFICER
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Mayor Ken Williams – Mayor’s Report May 3, 2021
Wed. April 21st, 2021 CRD Environmental Services Committee
The ESC recommended to the CRD Board that the CRD continues hauling and processing organics to private sector facilities
mid island while working with municipalities on a plan to commit feedstocks to be processed locally and reduce GHG emissions
among other environmental considerations.
Environmental Services Committee considered finalizing the Solid Waste Management Plan with this recommendation to the
Board:
1. That the final draft Solid Waste Management Plan be approved, that the final draft plan be submitted to the Ministry of
Environment and Climate Change Strategy for regulatory approval, that staff immediately begin implementing the Solid
Waste Management Plan, and that the Solid Waste Advisory Committee begins to function as the Plan Monitoring Advisory
Committee;
2. That staff work with the
Leadership Council to implement recommendations from their February 9, 2021 letter,
including establishing a
Leadership Council/Capital Regional District negotiation table and related meeting
schedule, and providing information regarding the Solid Waste Management Plan; and,
3. That staff prepare a package of Hartland area road access mitigation options costing up to $4 million funded by the Capital
Regional District's Environmental Resource Management division, review these options with District of Saanich staff and
area residents, and return to the CRD Board for direction on next steps.
4. That the Board:
a) Refer the attached report from Zero Waste British Columbia dated February 10, 2021 to staff to inform revisions to the
Solid Waste Management Plan.
b) Endorse the goal of the CRD becoming a national leader in Zero Waste and the Circular Economy in solid waste
management; and
c) Direct staff to strengthen the emphasis on the principles of Zero Waste and Circular Economy in the Solid Waste
Management Plan, including in the waste-reduction targets within the plan.
The ESC recommended that the CRD Board add parts a & b of number 4 to the Solid Waste Management Plan but
unfortunately changing the targets in part c would result in the entire process having to start over again before being sent to the
province. The Plan is a living document, however, and can be amended to reflect more aggressive targets in a shorter time
frame than starting over from scratch.
A staff report on Landfill Gas Emission Quantification was received:
https://crd.ca.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=21990&GUID=F6553FB8-6B91-4115-8187-B6BABF933010
The Environmental Resources Management- 2020 Progress Report was received:
https://crd.ca.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=21992&GUID=8D742D94-BFA9-48BE-8FEC-5ECD530FC913
The Capital Regional District Climate Action - 2020 Annual Report was received:
https://crd.ca.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=21993&GUID=41C24F80-6386-4568-A619-8B1E9CD6C9B3
Fri. April 23rd, 2021 Municipal Finance Authority of BC
The MFABC held a special meeting and approved a loan to fund Metro Vancouver’s sewer upgrade in the amount of $220
million.
Tues. April 27th, 2021 Minister Osbourne Teleconference
Municipal Affairs Minister Osbourne and B.C. Public Safety Minister Farnworth discussed the government’s decision to impose
travel restrictions in three areas:
• The Lower Mainland and Fraser Valley (Vancouver Coastal Health and Fraser Health areas).
• Vancouver Island (Island Health).
• Northern and Interior regions (Northern health and Interior Health).
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The legal orders under the provincial Emergency Program Act are designed to limit the spread of COVID-19.
"These measures can save lives and it's in the best interest of all British Columbians to follow them. A contravention of
this order may be subject to a $575 fine," said Farnworth.
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REPORT
To:

Loranne Hilton
Chief Administrative Officer

From:

Deb Hopkins
Corporate Officer

Subject:

Firearms and Bow Hunting Bylaw – Species Restrictions Update

Date:
File:

April 16, 2021
3900.424
To Council
May 3, 2021

PURPOSE:
To report back to Council on available mechanisms for petitioning the provincial government to implement a change
in the hunting regulations for the management unit encompassing the District of Highlands to ban bow hunting of
cougars and black bears in the area.
BACKGROUND:
At the annual Strategic Plan review Council discussed additional changes to the District’s Firearms and Bow Hunting
Bylaw to prohibit bow hunting of black bears in the District of Highlands. Staff advised that local governments are not
authorized to enact species specific restrictions to their hunting bylaws. While municipalities can regulate the
discharge of firearms and bow within the municipal boundaries, provisions for hunting species fall outside of the
jurisdiction of local governments.
During the discussion Council directed staff to liaise with the province to determine what the available mechanisms
are for restricting hunting of specific species within the District, or for petitioning the province to revise the hunting
regulations for the management unit applicable to the Highlands and to include both cougar and black bear as
species for exclusion.
OPTIONS:
The following options are for Council’s consideration:
Option 1:

That Council receive the report of the Corporate Officer dated April 16, 2021 for information.

Option 2:

That Council direct staff to bring forward amendments to the Firearms and Bow Hunting Bylaw to
implement a broad ban on bow hunting in the District of Highlands.

Option 3:

That Council direct that a letter be written to the Minister of Forests, Lands, Natural Resources and
Rural Development requesting that the hunting regulations for the management unit encompassing the
District of Highlands be revised to prohibit the hunting of cougar and black bear.

Option 4:

That Council provide alternate direction to staff.

DISCUSSION:
The Province has advised that special area closures for hunting seasons are under Provincial mandate. Area
closures are generally introduced only where there is a conservation concern such as low population numbers or
circumstances arising that do not support fair chase principles resulting in safety and ethical issues.
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Ministry staff acknowledged that any hunting season can result in wounded animals that have the potential to
encounter people while injured but recognized that this scenario is rare. They commented that the Province does not
endorse changing hunting regulations to address a single specific incident. Council could request that a letter be sent
to the Minister of Forests, Lands, Natural Resources and Rural Development petitioning for the desired changes to
the hunting regulations. While this avenue is always available to local governments, any requests for amending the
hunting regulations should include sufficient supporting evidence illustrating the significance of the matter requested
for review.
Given the Province’s response to hunting regulations amendments and that regulating wildlife falls under the
concurrent spheres of authority, there is not a mechanism for implementing species specific exceptions to hunting
within the Highlands. Council does have the authority to implement a broad ban on bow hunting throughout the
District, but this would apply to all species in the same way as the current firearms ban. If Council wishes to consider
a broad ban on bow hunting, there are other consequences that should also be contemplated as part of Council’s
decision-making process including population control, food accessibility, human-wildlife conflict, and more. Should
Council wish to consider a ban on bow hunting, public consultation may be required prior to implementing these
broad changes to hunting in the Highlands.
Financial Implications/Strategic Priorities:
Should Council wish to consider a complete ban on bow hunting in the District, there may be some monetary costs
associated with advertising and collecting public input. Additionally, as this initiative is not currently included in
Council’s Strategic Plan, it would redirect staff resources from current priorities.
CONCLUSION:
Regulating wildlife is included under the concurrent spheres of authority under the Community Charter which limits a
municipality’s authority to place restrictions on hunting activities within their jurisdiction. Under the legislation,
Council does have the authority to restrict or prohibit the use of firearms and bow within the District. To have the
hunting regulations amended within the District of Highlands, either concerns over conservation or fair chase
principles need to arise to initiate a review.
RECOMMENDATION:
That Council receive the report of the Corporate Officer dated April 16, 2021 and titled “Firearms and Bow Hunting
Bylaw – Species Restrictions Update” for information.

Respectfully submitted,

CAO Concurrence,

Deb Hopkins
Corporate Officer

Loranne Hilton
Chief Administrative Officer
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Making a difference ... together

Executive Services

T: 250.360.3125

625 Fisgard Street, PO Box 1000

F: 250.360 .3130
www.crd.bc.ca

Victoria , BC Canada V8W 2S6

RECEIVED
April 15, 2021

A0 R t 6

2021

District of Highlands

File: 0400-20
0400-50

Honourable Josie Osborne, Minister of Municipal Affairs
Regional Mayors and Councils
Mike Hicks, JDF Director, Capital Region District
Aaron Stone, Board Chair, Cowichan Valley Regional Disctrict

Via email
Dear Minister Osborne, Mayors and Councils, Director Hicks, Chair Stone:

RE:

CRD Adoption of Regional Growth Strategy Amendment - Population Projections

I am pleased to inform you that the Capital Regional District (CRD) Board has adopted Bylaw
No. 4328 "Capital Regional District Regional Growth Strategy Bylaw No. 1, 2016, Amendment
Bylaw No. 1, 2019". As required by section 443 of the Local Government Act, the CRD is providing
you with a copy of the Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) amendment.
This amendment updates the population, dwelling unit and employment projections, at the subregional level, with data from the 2016 Census. Municipal and electoral area planners were
provided the municipal-level projections that make up the sub-regional totals for transparency and
practical applications. Please note that municipal-level projections should not be used for regional
or cross-jurisdictional projects unless the municipality consents to their use.
On behalf of the Board, thank you for your participation in the RGS projections update process. I
look forward to our continued implementation of the RGS and achieving the vision we have set
for our region.
Sincerely,

1.~'

./)I

//I

'l/
f

t

Colin Plant
Chair, Capital Regional District Board
Attachments:

cc:

Bylaw No. 4328 "Capital Regional District Regional Growth Strategy Bylaw
No. 1, 2016, Amendment Bylaw No. 1, 2019"
CRD Regional Growth Strategy

Municipal Corporate Officers
Okenge Yuma Morisho, Deputy Minister of Municipal Affairs
Robert Lapham, Chief Administrative Officer, CRD
Kevin Lorette, General Manager, Planning & Protective Services, CRD
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CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT
BYLAW NO. 4328

A BYLAW TO AMEND BYLAW NO. 4017 "CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT REGIONAL
GROWTH STRATEGY BYLAW N0.1, 2016"

The Capital Regional District Board, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. Bylaw No. 4017, being the "Capital Regional District Regional Growth Strategy Bylaw No. 1,
2016", is hereby amended as follows:

A SCHEDULEA
(a) By deleting TABLE 1: POPULATION, DWELLING UNIT AND EMPLOYMENT
PROJECTIONS and replacing with a new TABLE 1: POPULATION, DWELLING UNIT
AND EMPLOYMENT PROJECTION as follows:
TABLE 1: POPULATION, DWELLING UNIT AND EMPLOYMENT PROJECTIONS
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First Nations populallons are nol lnduded In Table 1, as First Nations Reseives are outside the GMPA.
I
All values are rounded independently. As a result when stb-reglonal values are summed lhe values may not match the GMPA which I
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Employment does not include those without a fixed workplace address.
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2. This Bylaw may be cited as "Capital Regional District Regional Growth Strategy Bylaw No. 1,
2016, Amendment Bylaw No. 1, 2019".
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CRD Bylaw No. 4328

READ A FIRST TIME THIS
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2020
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AMENDED AT SECOND READING THIS
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D\\0 . .20
Liz Condon
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Jen Kyle .
_ _ _ __
April 19, 2021 1 :26 PM
Info
Correspondence Regarding Resident Proposed Burning Restrictions

April 19th, 2021

RECEIVED

Mayor and Council
District of Highlands

APR 1 9 2021
District of Highlands

Dear Mayor and Council,
We are writing regarding a correspondence received April 14th, 2021, by M. Rempel, regarding a request to
implement open burning restriction.
We are not in agreement with this request and have some specific concerns with it.
The suggestion to heavily restrict open burning would make it very difficult for many residents to bum
deadfall. While burning deadfall is not the only way to deal with it, the other main option of chipping requires a
significant investment in equipment, which many residents are not likely to be able or to afford or manage,
especially during such times as now when many people are working reduced hours or laid off. If burning is
restricted so heavily there is a great likelihood that many properties will either not be cleared of deadfall, or will
have piles of deadfall left throughout the property - which becomes dry and is a fire hazard. Every year we are
experiencing drier summers and we personally would prefer to deal with smoke occasionally throughout the
winter from neighbors burning than have that extra element of risk for fires starting and spreading in the
summer.
Furthermore, the days and times proposed for burning restrictions are arbitrary, and only consider the schedule
and needs of the resident proposing these restrictions. In a time when many residents have varying work
schedules, shift work, families to attend to and other responsibilities, it seems wrong to allow one or a few
residents wishes and personal schedules, to dictate widespread restriction schedules.
Another concern with such restrictive burning schedules is that it would cause those who can meet the schedule
to all be burning within a very narrow window of time. I would argue that a few fires spread out through the
highlands over the week, is better than everyone burning at one time. Air quality is more likely to be impacted
if everyone who continues to bum does it concurrently. Also with such a small burning window, it will
encourage people to bum hotter fires, and possibly larger ones, in an attempt to get through their burning within
the window, and these measures increase fire risk.
We understand the resident requesting restrictions is bothered by smoke on occasion, however air intake
systems to newer houses can be turned off for a few hours if bringing poor air indoors, and considering we live
on rural properties in a forested region, we believe it is unreasonable and unrealistic to expect burning to not
occur or be so extremely limited. I also noticed that the resident was concerned as some people do not follow
the guidelines currently in place while burning, but we all know more restrictions are not going to make
someone who already doesn't follow rules start. In regards to those burning against current regulations, the best
course of action is a call to our municipal fire chief or emergency services if warranted.
We hope the council will consider our concerns, and if changes are made to burning allowances, will give the
1
Page 73

community time to weigh in, and not rush any changes, as we do not believe these proposed restrictions would
be supported by the majority of residents.
Sincerely,
Jennifer and Bryan Kyle

2
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RECEIVED

APR 23 2021
District of Highlands
April 23, 2021

File: 5280.31

The Honourable John Horgan
Premier of BC
PO Box 9041 Stn Prov Govt
Victoria, BC V8W9El
Via email: Premier@gov.bc.ca

The Honourable Lana Popham
Minister of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries
PO Box 9409, Stn Prov Govt
Victoria, BC V8W9Vl
Via email: AGR.Minister@gov.bc.ca

The Honourable Katrine Conroy
Minister of Forests, Lands, Natural Resource
Operations and Rural Development
PO Box 9049, Stn Prov Govt
Victoria, BC V8W9W2
via email: FLNR.Minister@gov.bc.ca

The Honourable George Heyman
Minister of Environment and Climate Change
Strategy
PO Box 9360, Stn Prov Govt
Victoria, BC V8W 9M2
via email: ENV.Minister@gov.bc.ca

Dear Mr. Premier, Minister Popham, Minister Conroy and Minister Heyman:
RE: Lack of funding - Invasive Plant Management
At its April 15, 2021 meeting, the Board of the Peace River Regional District {PRRD) discussed growing
concerns that the Province is not recognizing the economic contribution agriculture makes to the
province of BC.
It has come to the Board's attention that, due to an oversight in funding allocations, there are no funds
available for treatment of invasive plants on public lands by the Ministry of Forests, Lands, Natural
Resource Operation and Resource Development (FLNRORD). These non-funded activities include the
ongoing treatment work targeted towards known, existing, high priority areas in our region as well as
the rest of the province. This dramatic oversight will result in the spread of invasive plants on FLNRORD
lands going unchecked and affecting neighbouring agricultural lands.
The PRRD respectfully requests answers to the following questions from each Ministry's perspective:
1. How can $12 million dollars be allocated from the office of the Premier, under FLNRORD, to
assist with the detection and removal of invasive plants, without allocating funds to hire
trained contractors to engage in treatment activities on Crown lands?
2.

Given that the funding is meant for job creation and invasive plants are continually trying to
invade Crown lands (which include much needed grazing areas that support the agriculture
industry); why is funding not being directed towards reinstatement of those pre-existing jobs
that would normally conduct the aforementioned treatment works through contract?

It is extremely concerning that the overarching Ministry which maintains the Noxious Weeds Act would
neglectfully be unprepared to treat invasive plants found on Crown occupied lands. Without
treatment, we would respectfully point out that invasive plants know no borders and, if unchecked,
will encroach neighbouring lands containing vital agriculture.

diverse. as

abundant.

PLEASE REPLY TO:
Box 810, 1981 Alaska Ave, Dawson Creek, BC VlG 4H8 Tel: (250) 784-3200 or (800) 670-7773 Fax: (250) 784-3201 Email: prrd.dc@prrd.bc.ca

0
D 9505 100 St, Fort St. John, BC VlJ 4N4 Tel: (250) 78S-8084 Fax: (250) 785-1125 Email: prrd.fsj@prrd.bc.ca
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The Province should be aware that the PRRD not only has an Invasive Plant Bylaw that enforces the
procession of invasive plants within the entire area of the BC Peace, it also employs staff and
contractors which are designated under the Noxious Weeds Act to enforce on the Crown's behalf.
Further, additional seasonal staff are hired annually to assist with the vast number of complaints that
are received regarding invasive plant infestations on public and private lands.
This leads us to our final question: in good faith, how can a local government enforce such invasive
plant removal when the Ministry housing the legislation is not even engaging in such activities?
In closing, the agricultural industry in the north provides economic benefits for the entire province.
Lack of funding and cancellation of any invasive plant treatment strategy will be detrimental, resulting
in increased costs of treatment work when funding does become available.
We look forward to receiving a favourable response to our concerns and questions.
Yours truly,
,

Yours truly,
'.,/'.

Brad Sperling
Regional Board Chair

Leonard Hiebert
Invasive Plant Committee Chair

c: Mr. Mike Bernier, South Peace MLA, via email: Mike.Bernier.MLA@leg.bc.ca
Mr. Dan Davies, North Peace MLA, via email: Dan.Davies.MLA@leg.bc.ca
Mr. Bob Zimmer, MP for Prince George-Peace River-Northern Rockies, via email: Bob.Zimmer@parl. gc.ca
NCLGA via email: admin@nclga.ca
UBCM via email: ubcm@ubcm.ca
Enclosures: April 21, 2021 Letter of Support, District of Chetwynd
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District of Chetwynd
Box 357
Chetwynd, BC
Canada voe 1JO

CHETWYND

tel: (250) 401-4100
fax: (250) 401-4101
email: d-chet@gochetwvnd.com

April 21, 2021
Peace River Regional District
P.O. Box 810
Dawson Creek, BC V 1G 4H8
By email: leonard.hiebert(a),prrd.bc.ca

Attention: Director Leonard Hiebert - Electoral Area "D" Director
Dear Mr. Hiebert:
Re: Invasive Weed Control on Crown Land
As you described during a recent Peace River Regional District Board meeting, invasive weeds
are a serious threat to biodiversity because they can spread quickly, outcompete native species
and destroy the habitat, dominate natural and managed areas, and in so doing harm biological
communities.
As BC's environment, people and economy can be negatively impacted by the unchecked spread
of invasive weeds, we support you in urging the Provincial government to continue to provide
invasive weed control measures on crown land.

Allen Courtoreille
Mayor
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DISTRICT OF ~

mGHLANDS
TO:

Loranne Hilton,
Chief Administrative Officer

FROM:

Deb Hopkins
Corporate Officer

RE:

Council Remuneration and Expenses Bylaw No. 400, 2018, Amendment Bylaw
No. 1, Bylaw No. 429, 2021

File: 0550.01
Date: April 23, 2021
To Council
May 3, 2021

PURPOSE
To consider adoption of "Council Remuneration and Expenses Bylaw, No. 400, 2018,
Amendment Bylaw No. 1, Bylaw No. 429, 2021".

BACKGROUND
Council gave first three readings of Bylaw No. 429 at its meeting held April 19, 2021.
If adopted, this amendment will add provisions in Bylaw No. 400 for reimbursement for travel by
personal E-bike for Elected Official business at the current established vehicle use rate of
$0.52/km.
A copy of Bylaw No. 429 is attached for consideration.

RECOMMENDATION
That "Council Remuneration and Expenses Bylaw No. 400, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 1,
Bylaw No. 429, 2021" be adopted.
Respectfully submitted,

/2itd4fd

Deb Hopkins
Corporate Officer

CAO Concurrence,

Loranne Hilton
Chief Administrative Officer

Attachment: Bylaw No. 429
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
BYLAW NO. 429

A BYLAW TO AMEND "COUNCIL REMUNERATION AND
EXPENSES BYLAW NO. 400, 2018"
WHEREAS Council deems it desirable to amend Council Remuneration and Expenses Bylaw No. 400, 2018;
NOW, THEREFORE, the Municipal Council of the District of Highlands in open meeting assembled enacts as
follows:
1.

That Section 6.1 be amended by adding the following as new paragraph 3:
“When the use of a motor assisted cycle (E-bike) is used, as defined in the Motor Vehicle Act and meeting the
criteria outlined in the Motor Assisted Cycle Regulation, reimbursement shall be paid at $0.52 per kilometer.”

2.

This Bylaw may be cited as "Council Remuneration and Expenses Bylaw No. 400, 2018, Amendment No. 1, Bylaw
No. 429, 2021."

READ A FIRST TIME THIS

19th day of

April, 2021.

READ A SECOND TIME THIS

19th day of

April, 2021.

READ A THIRD TIME THIS

19th day of

April, 2021.

ADOPTED THIS

day of

MAYOR

CORPORATE OFFICER
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REPORT
TO:

Mayor and Council

File: 1700-25
Date: April 14, 2021

FROM:

Loranne Hilton
Chief Administrative Officer

SUBJECT:

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN BYLAW NO. 430, 2021; TAX RATES BYLAW NO. 431,
2021

To Council
May 3, 2021

PURPOSE
To present the 2021 – 2025 Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw and the 2021 Tax Rates Bylaw to Council for
consideration of first three readings.
BACKGROUND
Budget deliberations were held over two meetings. During those meetings, the draft budget was revised
and tax policy considered, and Bylaw No. 430 and No. 431 reflect those discussions.
DISCUSSION
Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw No. 430, 2021
Bylaw 430 reflects Council’s tax policy for a 3% overall tax increase for the average residential property,
which is a combined 2% for the general municipal and fire tax levy, along with a 1% asset management tax
for infrastructure renewal. Actual tax impacts on each property will depend on the specific assessment
changes as they relate to the average change.
In 2015 Council began a phased in plan to adjust multiples for various classes. This plan was concluded in
previous years for changes to Class 2 (Utilities), 6 (Commercial), 7 (Private Managed Forest), and 9
(Farm).
As directed by Committee of the Whole on April 12 th, the Financial Plan Bylaw reflects the final phase of
adjusting multiples with an increase of .2 to the Class 5 (Light Industry) multiple to the 4.8 level that was
envisioned in the 2015 review, as well as changes to the grants in aid budget to raise it to $14,350 for
2021.
Tax Rates Bylaw No. 431, 2021
The Tax Rates Bylaw incorporates the various tax rates set for each property class to achieve the levy
contained in the Financial Plan, which has been amended from the draft budget to reflect a 3% increase
over 2020 taxes for the average residential dwelling.
2021 Budget Reports and Documents
There are reports and documents on the 2021 Financial Plan process that are accessible through the
District’s website portal for meeting agendas. Specifically the links shown under attachments below
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provide direct access to the Committee of the Whole and Council Budget Meetings containing all the
reports, drafts and related documents during the budget process.
RECOMMENDATION:
That:
1.

Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw No. 430, 2021 be read a First, Second and Third time.

2.

Tax Rates Bylaw No. 431, 2021 be read a First, Second and Third time.

Respectfully submitted,

Loranne Hilton
Chief Administrative Officer

Attachments:
Bylaw No 430, Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw
Bylaw No. 431, Tax Rates Bylaw
March 8, 2021, Report and Presentation – Draft Five Year Financial Plan (only attached as link)
March 26, 2021, Report and Draft Five Year Financial Plan (only attached as link)
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
BYLAW NO. 430
BEING A BYLAW OF THE DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS TO ADOPT THE FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN
FOR THE YEARS 2021 TO 2025

NOW THEREFORE The Council of the District of Highlands, in open meeting assembled,
enacts as follows:
1.

Schedule “A” attached to and forming part of this Bylaw is declared to be the Five Year
Financial Plan of the District of Highlands for the five year period ending December 31,
2025.

2.

Schedule “B” attached to and forming part of this Bylaw is declared to be the Statement
of Objectives and Policies of the District of Highlands for the purposes of this Bylaw.

3.

All payments from Municipal Revenue for the current year made prior to the passage of this
Bylaw are hereby ratified and confirmed.

4.

This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw No. 430,
2021”.

READ A FIRST TIME THIS

DAY OF

MAY, 2021

READ A SECOND TIME THIS

DAY OF

MAY, 2021

READ A THIRD TIME THIS

DAY OF

MAY, 2021

ADOPTED THIS

DAY OF

MAY, 2021

MAYOR

CORPORATE OFFICER
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Schedule “A” to Bylaw No. 430
2021 – 2025 Financial Plan

District of Highlands

Consolidated Five Year Financial Plan
2021
Budget

Operating Revenues
Taxation
Sales of Services
Other Revenue
Grants and Contributions
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
General Government Services
Protective Services
Transportation Services
Planning Services
Recreation and Cultural Services
Projects, Inititives and Service Changes
Total Operating Expenses
Net from Operations
Add
Reserves Used for Operating Projects
Equity for Amortization
Reserves Used for Capital
Proceeds of Debt
Deduct
Capital Expenses
Amortization Expense
Transfer to Reserves
Debt Servicing
Total Budget for the Year

2,238,800
76,700
61,700
820,700
3,197,900

2022
Budget
2,315,900
70,400
51,700
745,000
3,183,000

2023
Budget
2,520,100
73,500
51,700
711,500
3,356,800

2024
Budget

2025
Budget

2,596,700
73,600
51,700
640,000
3,362,000

2,658,300
73,700
51,700
641,700
3,425,400

972,400
537,500
307,000
300,600
429,300

978,500
524,800
314,800
270,600
403,300

989,400
499,300
321,800
274,200
412,800

958,200
510,300
330,100
253,400
423,300

981,600
515,700
343,600
257,300
417,800

2,546,800

2,492,000

2,497,500

2,475,300

2,516,000

651,100

691,000

859,300

886,700

909,400

70,000
875,800
934,000
-

65,000
875,800
380,000
-

30,000
875,800
380,000
-

30,000
875,800
355,000
-

30,000
875,800
355,000
-

934,000
875,800
660,200
60,900
-

380,000
875,800
695,100
60,900
-

380,000
875,800
828,400
60,900
-

355,000
875,800
855,800
60,900
-

355,000
875,800
895,800
43,600
-
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Schedule “B” to Bylaw 430
Revenue, Tax and Permissive Exemption Policy Disclosure
Proportion of Total Revenue:
The District will continue to pursue revenue diversification, with the objective of maintaining a reasonable tax
burden by maximizing other revenue sources and balancing the tax burden with user fees and charges
where feasible.
Property Class

Revenue Share

Property Taxes
Fees and Charges
Borrowing Proceeds
Other Sources
Total

70%
2%
0%
28%
0%
100%

Distribution of Property Taxes (General Municipal, Fire and Infrastructure Replacement):
The District will continue to set tax rates to ensure tax stability by maintaining the proportionate relationship
between classes and uniform annual tax increases, consistent with the previous year’s approach.
The District will also maintain a relationship between the property classes that is consistent with the
District’s Integrated Community Sustainability Plan and Council’s Strategic Priorities.
Property Class
Class 1 - Residential
Class 2 – Utilities
Class 5 - Light Industry
Class 6 - Business and Other
Class 7 - Private Managed Forest
Class 8 - Recreation/Non-profit
Class
9 - (8)
Class 99 -- Class
Farmland
TOTAL

2021 Multiple
1.00
8.00
4.80
4.40
3.00
6.00
3.00

Dollar Value
$1,771,900
9,500
135,300
236,600
3,400
40,700
900
$2,198,300

The District will continue to set a combined maximum 2% lift in general municipal taxes and fire taxes and
a 1% lift in asset management taxes for the average residential property each year.
Permissive Tax Exemptions:
The District will continue to consider Permissive Tax Exemptions that support environmental preservation in
the community on a case by case basis.
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DISTRICT OF HIGHLANDS
BYLAW NO. 431
BEING A BYLAW FOR THE LEVYING OF RATES FOR MUNICIPAL, HOSPITAL, REGIONAL DISTRICT,
AND SPECIFIED AREA PURPOSES FOR THE YEAR 2021

NOW THEREFORE The Council of the District of Highlands, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1.

The following rates are hereby imposed and levied for the 2021 taxation year:
(a)

For all lawful General purposes of the municipality on the value of land and improvements
taxable for general municipal purposes, rates appearing in Column "A" of Schedule A
attached to and forming a part of this bylaw.

(b)

For Hospital purposes on the value of land and improvements taxable for regional hospital
district purposes, rates appearing in Column "B" of Schedule A attached to and forming a part
of this bylaw.

(c)

For purposes of the Capital Regional District on the value of land and improvements for
regional hospital district purposes, rates appearing in Column "C" of Schedule A attached to
and forming a part of this bylaw.

(d)

For the purposes of the Highlands Fire Protection area on the value of land and
improvements taxable for Municipal Specified Areas general purposes, rates appearing in
Column "D" of Schedule A attached to and forming a part of this bylaw.

(e)

For Asset Management purposes of the municipality on the value of land and improvements
taxable for general municipal purposes, rates appearing in Column "E" of Schedule A
attached to and forming a part of this bylaw.

2.

The minimum amount of taxation upon a parcel of real property shall be one dollar ($1.00).

3.

This Bylaw may be cited as "Tax Rates Bylaw No. 431, 2021".

READ A FIRST TIME THIS

DAY OF

MAY, 2021

READ A SECOND TIME THIS

DAY OF

MAY, 2021

READ A THIRD TIME THIS

DAY OF

MAY, 2021

ADOPTED THIS

DAY OF

MAY, 2021

MAYOR

CORPORATE OFFICER

Page 85

Tax Rates Bylaw No. 431, 2021

Page 2

SCHEDULE “A”
TAX RATES BYLAW NO. 431, 2021
TAX RATES (Dollars of tax per $1,000 taxable value)
A

B

C

General
Municipal

Regional
Hospital

Regional
District

#1
Residential

1.5203

0.1813

0.2709

0.6407

0.1349

#2
Utilities

12.1626

0.6347

0.9483

5.1254

1.0791

#5
Light Industry

7.2976

0.6166

0.9212

3.0752

0.6474

6.6895

0.4443

0.6638

2.8190

0.5935

#7
Managed
Forest

4.5610

0.5440

0.8128

1.9220

0.4047

#8
Recreation/
Non-profit

9.1220

0.1813

0.2709

3.8440

0.8093

4.5610

0.1813

0.2709

1.9220

0.4047

Property
Class

#6
Business/
Other

#9
Farm

D
Specified
Area
Fire
Protection

E
Asset
Management
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MEMORANDUM
To:

Mayor and Council

From:

Loranne Hilton
Chief Administrative Officer

Re:

Draft Five Year Financial Plan – 2021 - 2025

File:
Date:

1700.25
March 1, 2021
To CoTW
March 8, 2020

PURPOSE
To present the draft 2021-2025 Five Year Financial Plan as per the budget review process adopted by
Council.
BACKGROUND
In accordance with the Financial Plan review process schedule previously approved, the first draft of the
Financial Plan for 2021 is attached for the Committee’s consideration and direction.
Legislative Requirements
Municipal Council must annually adopt a Financial Plan Bylaw outlining operating and capital revenues and
expenditures over a five year period, setting out the objectives and policies of the District in relation to the
distribution of property value taxes among the property classes, and the use of permissive tax exemptions.
It must also adopt a bylaw establishing the tax rates for municipal and capital regional district purposes.
A Municipal Council must undertake a process of public consultation regarding the proposed financial plan
before it is adopted, and as noted, the review process that will satisfy this requirement has been previously
established.
DRAFT FINANCIAL PLAN
The draft Financial Plan is a work in progress, as we will continue to receive information required for the
budgeting process, including finalized property assessment information. However, it provides a starting
point for discussion, and at this point is based on the current policy for a combined Municipal and Fire Tax
levy increase of 2%, and a 1% Asset Management levy for the average homeowner.
The presentation and formatting of the draft budget is intended to work towards a higher level policy based
and streamlined approach to budget deliberations, and aligns with the format for the financial statements.
The focus is on consolidated totals to provide the larger financial picture, and details have been added in
relation to expenses that are new or have more significant changes from 2020 levels. Additionally, the
budget provides a link to Asset Management Plan funding.
The proposed budget provides for the continuation of services, operating and capital projects, and for
continued implementation of Council’s strategic priorities.
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Taxation Policy
Tax policy is intended to be reviewed on an annual basis. In this regard, staff would bring the item forward
for discussion at the second budget review meeting.
Reserves
With the adoption of the Asset Management Plan, the long term goal is to build up the District’s reserve
funds for future infrastructure renewal and replacement in accordance with that Plan. The Plan is expected
to change over time likely through an annual review process, and Council will need to consider its policy in
respect to funding asset management needs in the future.
In order to incorporate a basis for an approach to building up the reserve funds, as provided for in the
completed asset management work through the FCM Municipal Asset Management grant program, Council
adopted a Reserves and Surplus policy and that policy guidance has once again been incorporated into the
draft Financial Plan.
Long Term Financial Plan
As approved by Council in 2019, a new high level long term financial planning approach has been
incorporated into the budgeting process. The Plan is based on the following three principles: Financial
sustainability, financial flexibility and financial exposure. The current financial position of the District reflects
the above principles.
Conclusion
As previously noted, the first draft of the Financial Plan is a starting point for discussion; it contains
preliminary numbers in some instances, which may change throughout the budgeting process as new
information is received from a variety of sources.
RECOMMENDATION:
That further discussion on the draft Financial Plan be brought forward to a future meeting.
Respectfully submitted,

Loranne Hilton
Chief Administrative Officer
Attachment:
Budget Summary Document – 2021-2025 Five Year Financial Plan
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REPORT
TO:

Mayor and Council

FROM:

Chief Administrative Officer

RE:

DRAFT 2 - 2021-2025 FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN

File:
Date:

1700.20
March 26, 2021

To Committee
of the Whole
April 12, 2021

PURPOSE
To present the second draft of the 2021-2025 Five Year Financial Plan, confirm Council’s taxation
policy approach and provide direction to staff to prepare the 2021-2025 Five Year Financial Plan and
Tax Rates Bylaws.
BACKGROUND
Budget:
The 2021-2025 Five Year Financial Plan was presented and discussed at the March 8th Committee
of the Whole meeting. The attached budget has been updated from the March 8th version as a result
of the year end process for 2020, final property assessment data, and changes in the use of various
reserve funds in future years. However, the tax impact for 2021 has not changed.
At the meeting held March 8th, staff was directed to provide information on the taxation impact of
including an additional $150,000 into the budget for the potential addition of staff and/or consultant
or combination. It was acknowledged at that time, that a report outlining the implications of
additional staffing or consulting resources, including what work would be the focus of new resources,
would be required.
OPTIONS
The following options are suggested for Council’s consideration:
Option 1:

That staff be directed to bring forward a Financial Plan Bylaw and Tax Rates Bylaw
to the May 3, 2021 Council meeting based on the current tax policy and current draft
budget attached to the report from the Chief Administrative Officer.

Option 2:

That Council provide direction on changes to incorporate into the Financial Plan,
including any policy changes, and direct staff to bring forward a Financial Plan Bylaw
and Tax Rates Bylaw to the May 3, 2021 Council meeting or direct a sooner Special
meeting be called to consider a revised draft of the Budget.
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DISCUSSION
Tax Policy:
In 2019 Council formalized integration of the asset management plan into the budget by
incorporating a 1% Asset Management tax levy in addition to the 2% combined General Municipal
and Fire tax increase for the average residential dwelling. This policy is embedded in the Financial
Plan Bylaw and is annually reviewed by Council during the budget process.
Accordingly, the 2021 budget is based on the District’s current taxation policy. Council’s proposed
strategic priorities and the maintenance of District operations have been incorporated within this
limit.
The following table illustrates the impact to the average residential dwelling with the proposed
combined 2% Municipal and Fire Tax Levy plus 1% Asset Management Tax Levy for the average
residential dwelling (assessed at $891,174).

Average Homeowner:
Municipal Taxes
Asset Management
Fire Service
Total

2020
$1,327
100
560
$1,987

2021
$1,355
120
571
$2,047

Increase
$ 28
20
11
$ 59

The table below reflects the direction received on March 8th to report back on the taxation
implications for an additional $150,000 added to the budget for a potential new position or consulting
assistance. Overall, the addition of resources would see an increase of approximately 9.6% to the
average homeowner, over the 2020 taxes.

Average Homeowner:
Municipal Taxes
Asset Management
Fire Service
Total

2020
$1,327
100
560
$1,987

2021
$1,486
120
571
$2,177

Increase
$ 159
20
11
$ 190

Tax Rate Multiples:
In 2015 Council began a phased in plan to adjust multiples for various classes. This plan was
concluded for changes to Class 2 (Utilities), 6 (Commercial), 7 (Private Managed Forest), and 9
(Farm).
Given significant assessment increases in Class 5 and 6 over the past few years, assessment
appeals, and more recently, COVID-19, no further tax multiple increases have been implemented.
Therefore the budget has been prepared based upon current multiples.
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PUBLIC CONSULTATION
In terms of public consultation, our website reflects the Financial Plan meeting review schedule,
approved by Council, which has also been advertised in the Goldstream Gazette. The public has
been invited to submit any comments on the budget in writing for inclusion on meeting agendas, or
to participate in the meetings electronically.
CONCLUSION
The budget as presented with this report represents a 2% combined General Municipal and Fire Tax
levy increase and an additional 1% Asset Management Tax levy, for the average residential
dwelling.
As directed by Council, a scenario for an additional $150,000 for potential new staff and/or
consulting assistance has also been provided, which would equate to an approximate 9.6% tax
increase over 2020 taxes for the average residential dwelling.
Should Council request additional information from staff or direct substantive changes to the draft
budget as it has been presented, a further Special meeting to review may be needed.
Otherwise, staff would propose to bring forward the appropriate bylaws to the May 3, 2021 Council
meeting for formal consideration.
RECOMMENDATION
That staff be directed to bring forward a Financial Plan Bylaw and Tax Rates Bylaw to the May 3,
2021 Council meeting based on the current tax policy and current draft budget attached to the report
from the Chief Administrative Officer.
OR
That Council provide direction on changes to incorporate into the Financial Plan and direct staff to
bring forward a Financial Plan Bylaw and Tax Rates Bylaw to the May 3, 2021 Council meeting or
direct a sooner Special meeting be called to consider a revised draft of the Budget.
Respectfully submitted,

Loranne Hilton
Chief Administrative Officer
Attachments:
Draft 2 Budget – April 12, 2021
Draft Budget – March 8, 2021
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REPORT
TO:

Loranne Hilton
Chief Administrative Officer

FROM:

Laura Beckett
Planner

RE:

DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT DVP-01-21
668 Southwood Drive

Date:
File:

April 27, 2021
DVP-01-21
To Council
May 3, 2021

PURPOSE
The purpose of this report is to provide proposed Development Variance Permit DVP-01-21 to Council for
decision.
BACKGROUND
Please find below the web link to the staff report regarding application DVP-01-21 that originally went to the
April 6, 2021 Council Meeting. It provides background and details of the application, as well as the draft
permit.
OPTIONS
The following options are for Council’s consideration:
1. That DVP-01-21 be issued.
2. That more information be requested.
3. That DVP-01-21 be denied.
DISCUSSION
Notification to surrounding properties was issued consistent with the Local Government Act. No comments
have been received at the office as of report date. Should any additional comments be submitted between
now and the May 3, 2021 Council Meeting, staff will provide them at the meeting.
CONCLUSION
The overhangs of two buildings and the foundation of one of those buildings were built into the side yard
setback. The buildings must either meet the Zoning Bylaw or receive a variance to the Zoning Bylaw prior to
receiving final building approvals.
RECOMMENDATION
That Council issue DVP-01-21.
Respectfully submitted,

Concurrence

Laura Beckett, MCIP, RPP
Municipal Planner

Loranne Hilton
Chief Administrative Officer

•

Web link to April 6, 2021 staff report for application DVP-01-21:
https://www.highlands.ca/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/6376?fileID=6370
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REPORT
TO:

Loranne Hilton
Chief Administrative Officer

FROM:

Laura Beckett
Planner

RE:

DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT DVP-03-20
747 Finlayson Arm Road

Date:
File:

April 28, 2021
DVP-03-20

To Council
May 3, 2021

PURPOSE
The purpose of this report is to provide proposed Development Variance Permit DVP-03-20 to Council for
decision.
BACKGROUND
Please find below the web link to the staff report regarding application DVP-03-20 that originally went to the April
19, 2021 Council Meeting. It provides background and details of the application, as well as the draft permit.
OPTIONS
The following options are for Council’s consideration:
1. That DVP-03-20 be issued.
2. That more information be requested.
3. That DVP-03-20 be denied.
DISCUSSION
Notification to surrounding properties was issued consistent with the Local Government Act. No comments have
been received as of report date. Should any additional comments be submitted between now and the May 3,
2021 Council Meeting, staff will provide them at the meeting.
CONCLUSION
The applicant requests to increase the maximum house size by 38m2 or 9% of that permitted in the zone to
connect a house to an accessory building via an indoor walkway.
RECOMMENDATION
That Council issue DVP-03-20.
Respectfully submitted,

Concurrence

Laura Beckett, MCIP, RPP
Municipal Planner

Loranne Hilton
Chief Administrative Officer

•

Web link to April 19, 2021 staff report for application DVP-03-20:
https://www.highlands.ca/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/6421?fileID=6388
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